CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS CO Form 10-K/A March 02, 2006

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY _____

> FORM 10-K/A _____

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) _____

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 _____

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 FORM 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1)

(Mark one) |X| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 _____

OR

|_| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from ____ _ to _

> 3 High Ridge Park Stamford, Connecticut

Commission file number 001-11001

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

06-0619596

incorporation or organization)

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

06905 _____

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (203) 614-5600 _____ Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: Title of each class Name of each exch _____ _____ Common Stock, par value \$.25 per share New York Stoc Guarantee of Convertible Preferred Securities of Citizens Utilities Trust New York Stoc Citizens Convertible Debentures N/ Guarantee of Partnership Preferred Securities of Citizens Utilities Capital L.P. N/

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: NONE

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

Yes X No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act. Yes No X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K/A or any amendment to this Form 10-K/A. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes X $\,$ No $\,$

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes $$\rm No\ X$$

The aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant on June 30, 2005 was approximately \$4,590,836,087 based on the closing price of \$13.44 per share.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's Common Stock as of January 31, 2006 was 328,457,505.

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 25, 2006 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K/A.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Report on Form 10-K/A amends and restates in its entirety the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Citizens Communications Company, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.

This Amendment is being filed solely because of a formatting error on page F-6.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(Registrant)

By: /s/ Robert J. Larson

Robert J. Larson Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

March 2, 2006

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART	Ι

Item 1.	Business	2
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	9
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments	12
Item 2.	Properties	12
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	13
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	13

Page

Item 5.	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	16
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	21
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	22
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	38
Item 8.	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	39
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	39
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	39
Item 9B.	Other Information	39
PART III		
Item 10.	Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant	39
Item 11.	Executive Compensation	39
Item 12.	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters	40
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	40
Item 14.	Principal Accountant Fees and Services	40
PART IV		
Item 15.	Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules	40
Index to (Consolidated Financial Statements	F-1

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

PART I

Item 1. Business

Executive Officers

PART II

Citizens Communications Company and its subsidiaries (Citizens) will be referred to as the "Company," "we," "us" or "our" throughout this report. Citizens was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1935 as Citizens Utilities Company.

We are a communications company providing services to rural areas and small and medium-sized towns and cities. We offer our services under the "Frontier" name.

14

In addition, we provide competitive local exchange carrier, or CLEC, services to business customers and to other communications carriers in certain metropolitan areas in the western United States through Electric Lightwave, LLC, or ELI, our wholly-owned subsidiary. Revenue from our Frontier and ELI operations was \$2,003.3 million and \$159.2 million, respectively, in 2005. In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell ELI and we expect the sale to close in the third quarter of 2006. Among the highlights for 2005:

- * Cash Generation We continued to grow free cash flow through further growth of broadband and value added services, productivity improvements, and a disciplined capital expenditure program that emphasizes return on investment.
- * Stockholder Value During 2005, we repurchased \$250.0 million of our common stock and we continued to pay an annual dividend of \$1.00 per common share. The share repurchase program was completed during the fourth quarter of 2005.
- * Growth

During 2005, we added approximately 99,000 new high-speed internet customers and almost 84,000 customers began buying a bundle or package of our services. At December 31, 2005, we had more than 311,000 high-speed data customers and almost 442,000 customers buying a bundle or package of services. During 2005, we also began offering a television product in partnership with Echostar's DISH Network, and at the end of 2005 we had approximately 32,000 customers buying a "triple play" package of telephone, television and high-speed internet service.

Our objective is to be the leading provider of communications services to homes and businesses in our service areas. We are committed to delivering innovative and reliable products and solutions with an emphasis on convenience, service and customer satisfaction. We offer a variety of voice, television and internet services that are available as bundled or package solutions or, for some products, a la carte. We believe that superior customer service and innovative product positioning will continue to differentiate us from our competitors in the marketplace.

Telecommunications Services

As of December 31, 2005, we operated incumbent local exchange carriers in 23 states. Our CLEC services consist of a variety of integrated telecommunications products.

Frontier is typically the dominant incumbent carrier in the markets we serve and provides the "last mile" of telecommunications services to residential and business customers in these markets. As a CLEC, we provide telecommunications services to businesses and other carriers in competition with the incumbent. As a CLEC, we frequently obtain the "last mile" access to customers through arrangements with the applicable incumbent. Frontier and ELI are subject to different regulatory frameworks of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). ELI does not compete with our Frontier business.

The telecommunications industry is undergoing significant changes and difficulties and our financial results reflect the impact of this challenging environment. As discussed in more detail in Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A), we operate in an increasingly challenging environment and our Frontier revenues have not been growing.

2

Frontier

Frontier accounted for \$2,003.3 million, or 93%, of our total revenues in 2005. Approximately 8% of our 2005 Frontier revenues came from federal and state subsidies and approximately 14% from regulated access charges.

Our Frontier business is primarily with residential customers and, to a lesser extent, non-residential customers. Our Frontier segment principally provides:

- * access services,
- * local services,
- * long distance services,
- * data and internet services,
- * directory services, and
- * television services.

Access services. We provide both switched and non-switched network access services. Switched access services allow other carriers the use of our facilities to originate and terminate their long distance voice and data traffic. These services are generally offered on a month-to-month basis and the service is billed on a minutes-of-use basis and access charges are based on access rates filed with the FCC for interstate services and with the respective state regulatory agency for intrastate services. Non-switched network access services provide other carriers and high-volume commercial customers with dedicated high-capacity circuits. Such services are generally offered on a contract basis and the service is billed on a fixed monthly recurring charge basis. In addition, subsidies received from state and federal universal service funds based on the high cost of providing telephone service to certain rural areas are a part of our access services revenue.

Revenue is recognized when services are provided to customers or when products are delivered to customers. Monthly recurring network access service revenue is billed in advance. The unearned portion of this revenue is initially deferred on our balance sheet and recognized in revenue over the period that the services are provided. Non-recurring network access service revenue is billed in arrears. The earned but unbilled portion of this revenue is recognized in revenue in the period that the services are provided.

Local services. We provide basic telephone wireline access services to residential and non-residential customers in our service areas. Our service areas are largely residential and are generally less densely populated than the primary service areas of the largest incumbent local exchange carriers. We also provide enhanced services to our customers by offering a number of calling features including call forwarding, conference calling, caller identification, voicemail and call waiting. We offer packages of communications services. These packages permit customers to bundle their basic telephone line with their choice of enhanced, long distance, television and internet services for a monthly fee and/or usage fee depending on the plan.

We intend to continue to increase the penetration of enhanced services. We believe that increased sales of such services will produce revenue with higher operating margins due to the relatively low marginal operating costs necessary to offer such services. We believe that our ability to integrate these services

with other services will provide us with the opportunity to capture an increased percentage of our customers' communications expenditures.

Long distance services. We offer long distance services in our territories to our customers. We believe that many customers prefer the convenience of obtaining their long distance service through their local telephone company and receiving a single bill. Long distance network service to and from points outside of our operating territories is provided by interconnection with the facilities of interexchange carriers, or IXCs.

Data and internet services. We offer data services including internet access (via dial up or high-speed internet access), frame relay, ethernet and asynchronous transfer mode (ATM) switching in portions of our system.

3

Directory services. Directory services involves the provision of white and yellow page directories of residential and business listings. We provide this service through a third-party contractor and are paid a percentage of revenues from the sale of advertising in these directories. Our directory service also includes "Frontier Pages," an internet-based directory service which generates advertising revenue. We recognize the revenue from these services over the life of the related white or yellow pages book.

Television services. During 2005, we began offering a television product in partnership with Echostar's DISH Network. We provide access to all-digital television channels featuring movies, sports, news, music, and high-definition TV programming. We offer packages that include 60, 120 or 180 channels, high-definition channels, family channels and ethnic channels.

Wireless and VOIP services. During 2006, we expect to begin offering wireless data and voice services and commercial voice over internet protocol (VOIP) solutions in certain markets. Our wireless data and VOIP services utilize technologies that are relatively new, and we depend to some degree on the representations of equipment vendors, lab testing and the experiences of others who have been successful at deploying these new technologies. In addition, our success in offering wireless voice service will, to a great extent, be determined by the relationships we are developing with both wireless carriers and third-party wireless support organizations, and is also dependent on their capabilities.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our revenue generating units (RGUs), which consists of access lines plus high-speed internet subscribers, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004.

	Frontier RGUs a	t December 31,
State	2005	2004
New York	994,600	1,029,700
Minnesota	293,600	289,300
Arizona	191,400	182,000
California	184,100	179,400
West Virginia	169,100	165,000
Illinois	129,200	128,600
Tennessee	108,500	104,500
Wisconsin	78 , 600	77,600
Iowa	61,900	62,100
Nebraska	54,500	54,400

All other states (13)	264,400	260,400
Total	2,529,900	2,533,000

Change in the number of our access lines is important to our revenue and profitability. We have lost access lines primarily because of competition, changing consumer behavior, economic conditions, changing technology and because some customers disconnect second lines when they add high-speed internet service. We lost approximately 102,000 access lines during the year ended December 31, 2005, but added over 99,000 high-speed internet subscribers during this same period. The loss of lines during 2005 was primarily among residential customers. The non-residential line losses were principally in Rochester, New York, while the residential losses were throughout our markets. We expect to continue to lose access lines but to increase high-speed internet subscribers during 2006. A continued loss of access lines, combined with increased competition and the other factors discussed in MD&A, may cause our profitability and cash flows to decrease during 2006.

ELI

In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell all of the outstanding membership interests in ELI to Integra Telecom Holdings, Inc. (Integra), for \$247.0 million, including \$243.0 million in cash plus the assumption of approximately \$4.0 million in capital lease obligations, subject to customary adjustments under the terms of the agreement. This transaction is expected to close during the third quarter of 2006. The closing of the sale is subject to several conditions, including the funding of Integra's fully committed financing and regulatory approvals.

4

ELI provides a broad range of wireline communications products and services to businesses and other carriers in the western United States. ELI accounted for \$159.2 million, or 7%, of our total revenues in 2005. Our ELI revenues have declined from a peak of \$240.8 million in 2000, however 2005 revenues were higher than 2004.

ELI's facilities-based network consists of optical fiber and voice and data switches. ELI has a national internet and data network with switches and routers in key cities, linked by leased transport facilities. These assets are not being sold and will continue to be owned and utilized by Frontier to carry our customers' voice, internet and data traffic. In addition, ELI has a long-haul, fiber-optic network connecting the cities it serves in the western United States, which utilizes an optically self-healing Synchronous Optical Network (SONET) architecture. ELI currently provides the full range of its services in the following cities and their surrounding areas: Boise, Idaho; Portland, Oregon; Salt Lake City, Utah; Seattle, Washington; Spokane, Washington; Phoenix, Arizona; and Sacramento, California.

Regulatory Environment

Frontier Regulation

The majority of our operations are regulated extensively by various state regulatory agencies, often called public service or utility commissions, and the FCC.

Our Frontier segment revenue is subject to regulation by the FCC and various state regulatory agencies. We expect federal and state lawmakers to continue to review the statutes governing the level and type of regulation for telecommunications services.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, or the 1996 Act, dramatically changed the telecommunications industry. The main purpose of the 1996 Act was to open local telecommunications marketplaces to competition. The 1996 Act preempts state and local laws to the extent that they prevent competition with respect to communications services. Under the 1996 Act, however, states retain authority to impose requirements on carriers necessary to preserve universal service, protect public safety and welfare, ensure quality of service and protect consumers. States are also responsible for mediating and arbitrating interconnection agreements between CLECs and ILECs if voluntary negotiations fail. In order to create an environment in which local competition is a practical possibility, the 1996 Act imposes a number of requirements for access to network facilities and interconnection on all local communications providers. All incumbent local carriers must interconnect with other carriers, unbundle some of their services at wholesale rates, permit resale of some of their services, enable collocation of equipment, provide local telephone number portability and dialing parity, provide access to poles, ducts, conduits and rights-of-way, and complete calls originated by competing carriers under termination arrangements.

At the federal level and in a number of the states in which we operate, we are subject to price cap or incentive regulation plans under which prices for regulated services are capped in return for the elimination or relaxation of earnings oversight. The goal of these plans is to provide incentives to improve efficiencies and increased pricing flexibility for competitive services while ensuring that customers receive reasonable rates for basic services. Some of these plans have limited terms and, as they expire, we may need to renegotiate with various states. These negotiations could impact rates, service quality and/or infrastructure requirements which could impact our earnings and capital expenditures. In the other states in which we operate, we are subject to rate of return regulation that limits levels of earnings and returns on investments. In some states, we have been required to refund customers as a result of exceeding earnings limitations. We continue to advocate our position of less regulation with various regulatory agencies.

For interstate services regulated by the FCC, we have elected a form of incentive regulation known as "price caps" for most of our operations. In May 2000, the FCC adopted a methodology for regulating the interstate access rates of price cap companies through May 2005. The program, known as the Coalition for Affordable Local and Long Distance Services, or CALLS plan, reduced prices for interstate-switched access services and phased out many of the implicit subsidies in interstate access rates. The CALLS program expired in 2005. The FCC may address future changes in interstate access charges during 2006 and such changes may adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

Another goal of the 1996 Act was to remove implicit subsidies from the rates charged by local telecommunications companies. The CALLS plan addressed this requirement for interstate services. State legislatures and regulatory agencies are beginning to reduce the implicit subsidies in intrastate rates. The most common subsidies are in access rates that historically have been priced above their costs to allow basic local rates to be priced below cost. Legislation has been considered in several states to require regulators to eliminate these subsidies and implement state universal service programs where necessary to maintain reasonable basic local rates. However, not all the reductions in access charges would be fully offset. We anticipate additional state legislative and regulatory pressure to lower intrastate access rates.

Some state legislatures and regulators are also examining the provision of telecommunications services to previously unserved areas. Since many unserved areas are located in rural markets, we could be required to expand our service territory into some of these areas.

Recent and Potential Regulatory Developments

Wireline and wireless carriers are required to provide local number portability (LNP). LNP is the ability of customers to switch from a wireline or wireless carrier to another wireline or wireless carrier without changing telephone numbers. We are 100% LNP capable in our largest markets and over 98% of our exchanges are LNP capable. We will upgrade the remaining exchanges in response to bona fide requests as required by the FCC order.

LNP will promote further competition in an environment where the displacement of traditional wireline services has been increasing because of technological substitutions such as cell phones, e-mail, cable telephony and Internet phone calling.

In 1994, Congress passed the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (CALEA) to ensure that telecommunication networks can meet law enforcement wiretapping needs. We expect to be fully compliant by June 2006.

The FCC is expected to address issues involving inter-carrier compensation, the universal service fund and internet telephony in 2006. The FCC adopted a Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (FNPRM) addressing inter-carrier compensation on February 10, 2005. Some of the proposals being discussed with respect to inter-carrier compensation, such as "bill and keep" (under which switched access charges would be reduced or eliminated), could reduce our access revenues and our profitability. The universal service fund is under pressure as local exchange companies lose access lines and more entities, such as wireless companies, seek to receive monies from the fund. The rules surrounding the eligibility of Competitive Eligible Telecommunication Carriers, such as wireless companies, to receive universal service funds are expected to be clarified by the Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service and the clarification of the rules may heighten the pressures on the fund. Changes in the funding or payout rules of the universal service fund could further reduce our subsidy revenues and our profitability. As discussed in MD&A, our access and subsidy revenues are important to our cash flows and both our access and subsidy revenues declined in 2005 compared to 2004. Our access revenues are likely to decline again in 2006.

The development and growth of internet telephony (also known as VOIP) by cable and other companies has increased the importance of regulators at both the federal and state levels addressing whether such services are subject to the same or different regulatory and financial schemes as traditional telephony. On November 9, 2004, the FCC issued an order in response to a petition by Vonage Holdings Corp. (Vonage), declaring that Vonage-style VOIP services are jurisdictionally interstate in nature and are thereby exempt from state telecommunications regulations. The FCC stated that its order was not limited to Vonage, but rather applied to all Vonage-type VOIP offerings provided over broadband services. The FCC did not address other related issues, such as: whether or under what terms VOIP traffic may be subject to intercarrier compensation; if VOIP services are subject to general state requirements relating to taxation and general commercial business requirements; or whether VOIP is subject to 911, universal service fund (USF), and CALEA obligations. The FCC is planning on addressing these open questions in subsequent orders in its ongoing "IP-Enabled Services Proceeding," which opened in February 2004. Internet telephony may have an advantage over our traditional services if it remains less regulated. We are actively participating in the FCC's consideration

of all these issues. On June 3, 2005, the FCC issued an order requiring VOIP services interconnected to the public switched telephone network to include E-911 calling capabilities by November 28, 2005. Subsequently, the FCC issued a number of public notices detailing the steps that could be considered sufficient interim compliance. The FCC stated in a public notice that providers not in full compliance would not be required to disconnect existing subscribers but would be expected not to connect new subscribers in areas where they are not transmitting 911 calls in full compliance with the rules. On September 23, 2005, the FCC issued an order stating that both interconnected VOIP services and broadband internet access services will be required to comply with CALEA by May 12, 2007. Both the VOIP E-911 order and the CALEA order are subject to petitions for clarification and reconsideration and both have been appealed and are pending before federal courts.

6

The FCC's service outage reporting rules require telecommunications providers (regardless of whether they are cable, wireless or wireline communications providers) to report outages of at least a 30 minute duration that potentially affect at least 900,000 user-minutes. The initial FCC order, which included required reporting of certain non-service interrupting network outages, was partially stayed. The network modifications necessary to comply with the stayed portion of the order would cost us in excess of \$16.0 million. The New York Public Service Commission is also considering network reliability requirements. We and other carriers are opposing these proposed requirements.

Some state regulators (including New York and Illinois) have in the past considered imposing on regulated companies (including us) cash management practices that could limit the ability of a company to transfer cash between its subsidiaries or to its parent company. None of the existing state requirements materially affect our cash management but future changes by state regulators could affect our ability to freely transfer cash within our consolidated companies.

ELI Regulation

As a CLEC, ELI is subject to federal, state and local regulation. However, the level of regulation is typically less than that experienced by an incumbent carrier. Local governments may require ELI to obtain licenses or franchises regulating the use of public rights-of-way necessary to install and operate its networks.

ELI has various interconnection agreements in the states in which it operates. These agreements govern reciprocal compensation relating to the transport and termination of traffic between the incumbent's and ELI's networks. The FCC has significantly reduced intercarrier compensation for internet service provider (ISP) traffic, also known as "reciprocal compensation." On December 15, 2004, the FCC adopted rules that will increase costs to ELI for services that it buys from incumbent carriers.

Most state public service commissions require competitive communications providers, such as ELI, to obtain operating authority prior to initiating intrastate services. Most states also require the filing of tariffs or price lists and/or customer-specific contracts. ELI is not currently subject to rate-of-return or price regulation. However, ELI is subject to state-specific quality of service, universal service, periodic reporting and other regulatory requirements, although the extent of these requirements is generally less than those applicable to incumbent carriers.

Competition

Frontier Competition

Competition in the telecommunications industry is intense and increasing. We experience competition from many communications service providers including cable operators, wireless carriers, VOIP providers, long distance providers, competitive local exchange carriers, internet providers and other wireline carriers. We believe that competition will continue to intensify in 2006 across all products and in all of our markets. Our Frontier business experienced erosion in access lines and switched access minutes of use in 2005 as a result of competition. Competition in our markets may result in reduced revenues in 2006.

We are responding to this competitive environment with new product offers and by bundling products and services together with an end user contract term commitment. Revenues from data services and packages continue to increase as a percentage of our total revenues. There will continue to be price and margin pressures in our business that may result in less revenues and profitability.

The telecommunications industry is undergoing significant changes. The market is extremely competitive, resulting in lower prices, and consumers are changing behavior, such as using wireless in place of wireline services and using email instead of making calls. These trends are likely to continue and result in a challenging revenue environment. These factors could also result in more bankruptcies in the sector and therefore affect our ability to collect money owed to us by bankrupt carriers.

ELI Competition

ELI faces significant competition from incumbents in each of its markets. Principal incumbent competitors include Qwest, at&t and Verizon. ELI also competes with all of the major IXCs, internet access providers and other CLECs. CLEC service providers have generally encountered intense competitive pressures, the result of which is the failure of a number of CLECs and substantial financial pressures on others.

7

Competitors in ELI's markets include, in addition to the incumbent providers: at&t, Sprint, Time Warner Telecom, Verizon, Integra Telecom and XO Communications. In each of the markets in which ELI operates, at least one other CLEC, and in some cases several other CLECs, offer many of the same services that ELI provides, generally at similar prices.

Competition is based on price, quality, network reliability, customer service, service features and responsiveness to the customer's needs. Many of our competitors have greater market presence and greater financial, technical, marketing and human resources, more extensive infrastructure and stronger customer and strategic relationships than are available to us. Competition in the CLEC industry is intense and pricing continues to decline. ELI's revenues have declined since 2000, however 2005 revenues were higher than 2004.

Divestiture of Public Utilities Services

In the past we provided public utilities services including natural gas transmission and distribution, electric transmission and distribution, water distribution and wastewater treatment services to primarily rural and suburban

customers throughout the United States. In 1999, we announced a plan of divestiture for our public utilities services properties. Since then, we have divested all of our public utility operations for an aggregate of \$1.9 billion.

We have retained a potential payment obligation associated with our previous electric utility activities in the state of Vermont. The Vermont Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermont utilities, including us, entered into a purchase power agreement with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreement contains "step-up" provisions which state that if any VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation under the contract to purchase power from Hydro-Quebec, then the other VJO participants will assume responsibility for the defaulting party's share on a pro-rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchase power obligation is 10%. If any member of the VJO defaults on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebec agreement, the remaining members of the VJO, including us, may be required to pay for a substantially larger share of the VJO's total power purchase obligation for the remainder of the agreement (which runs through 2015). Paragraph 13 of FIN 45 requires that we disclose "the maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee." Paragraph 13 also states that we must make such disclosure "... even if the likelihood of the guarantor's having to make any payments under guarantee is remote..." As noted above, our obligation only arises as a the result of default by another VJO member, such as upon bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the "maximum" potential amount" disclosure requirement we must assume that all members of the VJO simultaneously default, a highly unlikely scenario given that the two members of the VJO that have the largest potential payment obligations are publicly traded with credit ratings that are equal to or superior to ours, and that all VJO members are regulated utility providers with regulated cost recovery. Regardless, despite the remote chance that such an event could occur, or that the State of Vermont could or would allow such an event, assuming that all the members of the VJO defaulted on January 1, 2007 and remained in default for the duration of the contract (another 9 years), we estimate that our undiscounted purchase obligation for 2007 through 2015 would be approximately \$1.26 billion. In such a scenario we would then own the power and could seek to recover our costs. We would do this by seeking to recover our costs from the defaulting members and/or reselling the power to other utility providers or the northeast power grid. There is an active market for the sale of power. We could potentially lose money if we were unable to sell the power at cost. We caution that we cannot predict with any degree of certainty any potential outcome.

Segment Information

Note 22 to Consolidated Financial Statements provides financial information about our industry segments, Frontier and ELI, for the last three fiscal years.

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales

We have no foreign operations.

General

Order backlog is not a significant consideration in our businesses. We have no material contracts or subcontracts that may be subject to renegotiation of profits or termination at the election of the Federal government. We hold no patents, licenses or concessions that are material.

8

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, we had 6,103 employees, 5,644 of whom were associated with Frontier operations and 459 were associated with ELI. At December 31, 2005, the total number of our employees affiliated with a union was 3,302, of which approximately 1,400 are covered by agreements set to expire during 2006. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Available Information

We make available on our website, free of charge, the periodic reports that we file with or furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, as well as all amendments to these reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC. We also make available on our website, or in printed form upon request, free of charge, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, and the charters for the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance committees of the Board of Directors. Stockholders may request printed copies of these materials by writing to: 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford, Connecticut 06905 Attention: Corporate Secretary. Our website address is http://www.czn.net.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Before you invest in our securities, you should carefully consider all the information we have included or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K/A and our subsequent periodic filings with the SEC. In particular, you should carefully consider the risk factors described below and read the risks and uncertainties related to "forward-looking statements" as set forth in the "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" section of this Form 10-K/A. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial or that are not specific to us, such as general economic conditions, may also adversely affect our business and operations.

Risks Related to Competition and Our Industry

We face intense competition, which could adversely affect us.

The telecommunications industry is extremely competitive and competition is increasing. The traditional dividing lines between long distance, local, wireless, cable and internet services are becoming increasingly blurred. Through mergers and various service expansion strategies, services providers are striving to provide integrated solutions both within and across geographic markets. Our competitors include CLECs and other providers (or potential providers) of services, such as internet service providers, or ISPs, wireless companies, neighboring incumbents, VOIP providers such as Vonage and cable companies that may provide services competitive with ours or services that we intend to introduce. Competition is intense and increasing and we cannot assure you that we will be able to compete effectively. For example, at December 31, 2005 we had 102,000 fewer access lines than we had at December 31, 2004 and we believe wireless and cable telephony providers have increased their market share in our markets. We expect to continue to lose access lines and that competition with respect to all our products and services will increase.

We expect competition to intensify as a result of the entrance of new competitors and the development of new technologies, products and services. We cannot predict which of the many possible future technologies, products or services will be important to maintain our competitive position or what expenditures will be required to develop and provide these technologies, products or services. Our ability to compete successfully will depend on marketing and on our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive

factors affecting the industry, including a changing regulatory environment that may affect our competitors and us differently, new services that may be introduced, changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions and pricing strategies by competitors. Increasing competition may reduce our revenues and increase our costs as well as require us to increase our capital expenditures and thereby decrease our cash flow.

Some of our competitors have superior resources, which may place us at a cost and price disadvantage.

Some of our current and potential competitors have market presence, engineering, technical and marketing capabilities, and financial, personnel and other resources substantially greater than ours. In addition, some of our competitors can raise capital at a lower cost than we can. Consequently, some competitors may be able to develop and expand their communications and network infrastructures more quickly, adapt more swiftly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements, take advantage of acquisition and other opportunities more readily and devote greater resources to the marketing and sale of their products and services than we can. Additionally, the greater brand name recognition of some competitors may require us to price our services at lower levels in order to retain or obtain customers. Finally, the cost advantages of some competitors may give them the ability to reduce their prices for an extended period of time if they so choose.

9

ELI faces substantial competition for its telecommunications services from larger companies.

ELI's competitors for telecommunications services are primarily larger incumbents, CLECs and IXCs. Because it is not an incumbent provider, ELI's ability to succeed in the telecommunications services market depends to a large extent on its ability to provide differentiated services for business customers and to maintain its customer base and develop additional business customers.

We anticipate that general pricing competition and pressures for CLECs will increase, including ELI. We have not obtained significant market share in any of the areas where we offer our CLEC services, nor do we expect to do so given the size of our ELI markets, the intense competition therein and the diversity of customer requirements. There can be no assurance that ELI will be able to compete effectively in any of our markets. Furthermore, the bankruptcies and weakened financial position of a number of CLECs have resulted in a more demanding operating environment for CLECs, as both customers and suppliers are more concerned about each CLEC's creditworthiness.

Risks Related to Our Business

Decreases in certain types of our revenues will impact our profitability.

Our Frontier business has been experiencing declining access lines, switched access minutes of use, long distance prices and related revenues because of economic conditions, increasing competition, changing consumer behavior (such as wireless displacement of wireline use, email use, instant messaging and increasing use of VOIP), technology changes and regulatory constraints. These factors are likely to cause our local network service, switched network access, long distance and subsidy revenues to continue to decline, and these factors, together with our increasing employee costs, and the potential need to increase our capital spending, may cause our cash generated by operations to decrease.

We may be unable to grow our revenue and cash flow despite the initiatives we have implemented.

We must produce adequate cash flow that, when combined with funds available under our revolving credit facility, will be sufficient to service our debt, fund our capital expenditures, pay our taxes and maintain our current dividend policy. We have implemented several growth initiatives, including increasing our marketing expenditures and launching new products and services with a focus on areas that are growing or demonstrate meaningful demand such as high-speed internet. There is no assurance that these initiatives will result in an improvement in our financial position or our results of operations.

We may complete a significant business combination or other transaction that could increase our shares outstanding, affect our debt, result in a change in control, or both.

From time to time we evaluate potential acquisitions and other arrangements that would extend our geographic markets, expand our services, enlarge the capacity of our networks or increase the types of services provided through our networks. If we complete any acquisition or other arrangement, we may require additional financing that could result in an increase in our shares outstanding and/or debt, result in a change in control, or both. There can be no assurance that we will enter into any transaction.

Our business is sensitive to the creditworthiness of our wholesale customers.

We have substantial business relationships with other telecommunications carriers for whom we provide service. During the past few years, several of our customers have filed for bankruptcy. While these bankruptcies have not had a material adverse effect on our business to date, future bankruptcies in our industry could result in our loss of significant customers, more price competition and uncollectible accounts receivable. As a result, our revenues and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

10

Risks Related to Liquidity, Financial Resources, and Capitalization

Substantial debt and debt service obligations may adversely affect us.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. We may also obtain additional long-term debt and working capital lines of credit to meet future financing needs, subject to certain restrictions under our existing indebtedness, which would increase our total debt.

The significant negative consequences on our financial condition and results of operations that could result from our substantial debt include:

- * limitations on our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing;
- * instances in which we are unable to meet the financial covenants contained in our debt agreements or to generate cash sufficient to make required debt payments, which circumstances have the potential of accelerating the maturity of some or all of our outstanding indebtedness;
- * the allocation of a substantial portion of our cash flow from

operations to service our debt, thus reducing the amount of our cash flow available for other purposes, including operating costs, dividends and capital expenditures that could improve our competitive position or results of operations;

- * requiring us to sell debt or equity securities or to sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavorable terms, to meet payment obligations;
- * compromising our flexibility to plan for, or react to, competitive challenges in our business and the communications industry; and
- * the possibility of our being put at a competitive disadvantage with competitors who do not have as much debt as us, and competitors who may be in a more favorable position to access additional capital resources.

We will require substantial capital to upgrade and enhance our operations.

Replacing or upgrading our infrastructure will result in significant capital expenditures. If this capital is not available when needed, our business will be adversely affected. Increasing competition, offering new services, improving the capabilities or reducing the maintenance costs of our plant may cause our capital expenditures to increase in the future. In addition, our ongoing annual dividend of \$1.00 per share under our current policy utilizes a significant portion of our cash generated by operations and therefore limits our operating and financial flexibility and our ability to significantly increase capital expenditures. While we believe that the amount of our dividend will allow for adequate amounts of cash flow for capital spending and other purposes, any material reduction in cash generated by operations and any increases in capital expenditures, interest expense or cash taxes would reduce the amount of cash generated in excess of dividends. Losses of access lines, increases in competition, lower subsidy and access revenues and the other factors described above may reduce our cash generated by operations and may require us to increase capital expenditures. In addition, we expect our cash paid for taxes to increase significantly over the next several years.

Risks Related to Regulation

The access charge revenues we receive may be reduced at any time.

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from access charges paid by IXCs for services we provide in originating and terminating intrastate and interstate traffic. The amount of access charge revenues we receive for these services is regulated by the FCC and state regulatory agencies. Recent rulings regarding access charges have lowered the amount of revenue we receive from this source. Additional actions by these agencies could further reduce the amount of access revenues we receive. In addition, a portion of our access revenues is received from state and federal universal service funds based upon the high cost of providing telephone service to certain rural areas. In the future, there may be proposals by state or federal regulatory agencies to eliminate or reduce these revenues. A material reduction in the revenues we receive from these funds would adversely affect our financial results.

We are reliant on support funds provided under federal and state laws.

We receive a significant portion of our revenues from the federal universal service fund and, to a lesser extent, state support funds. These governmental programs are reviewed and amended from time to time, and we cannot assure you that they will not be changed or impacted in a manner adverse to us.

Our company and industry are highly regulated, imposing substantial compliance costs and restricting our ability to compete in our target markets.

As an incumbent, we are subject to significant regulation from federal, state and local authorities. This regulation restricts our ability to change our rates, especially on our basic services, and imposes substantial compliance costs on us. Regulation restricts our ability to compete and, in some jurisdictions, it may restrict how we are able to expand our service offerings. In addition, changes to the regulations that govern us may have an adverse effect upon our business by reducing the allowable fees that we may charge, imposing additional compliance costs, or otherwise changing the nature of our operations and the competition in our industry.

Recent rule changes now allow customers to retain their wireline number when switching to another service provider. This is likely to increase the number of our customers who decide to disconnect their service from us. Other pending rulemakings, including those relating to intercarrier compensation, universal service and VOIP regulations, could have a substantial adverse impact on our operations.

Risks Related to Technology

In the future as competition intensifies within our markets, we may be unable to meet the technological needs or expectations of our customers, and may lose customers as a result.

The telecommunications industry is subject to significant changes in technology. If we do not replace or upgrade technology and equipment, we will be unable to compete effectively because we will not be able to meet the needs or expectations of our customers. Replacing or upgrading our infrastructure could result in significant capital expenditures.

In addition, rapidly changing technology in the telecommunications industry may influence our customers to consider other service providers. For example, we may be unable to retain customers who decide to replace their wireline telephone service with wireless telephone service. In addition, VOIP technology, which operates on broadband technology, now provides our competitors with a low-cost alternative to provide voice services to our customers.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal corporate offices are located in leased premises at 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford, Connecticut.

An operations support office is currently located in leased premises at 180 South Clinton Avenue, Rochester, New York. In addition, our Frontier segment leases and owns space in various markets throughout the United States.

An operations support office for ELI is located in a building we own at 4400 NE 77th Avenue, Vancouver, Washington. In addition, our ELI segment leases local

office space in various markets throughout the United States, and also maintains a warehouse facility in Portland, Oregon. Our ELI segment also leases network hub and network equipment installation sites in various locations throughout the areas in which it provides services. For additional information regarding obligations under lease, see Note 25 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

12

Our Frontier and ELI segments own telephone properties which include: connecting lines between customers' premises and the central offices; central office switching equipment; fiber-optic and microwave radio facilities; buildings and land; and customer premise equipment. The connecting lines, including aerial and underground cable, conduit, poles, wires and microwave equipment, are located on public streets and highways or on privately owned land. We have permission to use these lands pursuant to local governmental consent or lease, permit, franchise, easement or other agreement.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The City of Bangor, Maine, filed suit against us on November 22, 2002, in the U.S. District Court for the District of Maine (City of Bangor v. Citizens Communications Company, Civ. Action No. 02-183-B-S). The City alleged, among other things, that we are responsible for the costs of cleaning up environmental contamination alleged to have resulted from the operation of a manufactured gas plant owned by Bangor Gas Company from 1852-1948 and by us from 1948-1963. In acquiring the operation in 1948 we acquired the stock of Bangor Gas Company and merged it into us. The City alleged the existence of extensive contamination of the Penobscot River and asserted that money damages and other relief at issue in the lawsuit could exceed \$50,000,000. The City also requested that punitive damages be assessed against us. We filed an answer denying liability to the City, and asserted a number of counterclaims against the City. In addition, we identified a number of other potentially responsible parties that may be liable for the damages alleged by the City and joined them as parties to the lawsuit. These additional parties include Honeywell Corporation, Guilford Transportation (operating as Maine Central Railroad), UGI Utilities, Inc. and Centerpoint Energy Resources Corporation. The Court dismissed all but two of the City's claims, including its claims for joint and several liability under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) and the claim against us for punitive damages. Trial was conducted in September and October 2005 for the first (liability) phase of the case, and a decision from the court is anticipated by the end of the first quarter of 2006. We intend to continue to defend ourselves vigorously against the City's lawsuit. We have demanded that various of our insurance carriers defend and indemnify us with respect to the City's lawsuit, and on December 26, 2002, we filed a declaratory judgment action against those insurance carriers in the Superior Court of Penobscot County, Maine, for the purpose of establishing their obligations to us with respect to the City's lawsuit. We intend to vigorously pursue this lawsuit and to obtain from our insurance carriers indemnification for any damages that may be assessed against us in the City's lawsuit as well as to recover the costs of our defense of that lawsuit.

On June 7, 2004, representatives of Robert A. Katz Technology Licensing, LP, contacted us regarding possible infringement of several patents held by that firm. The patents cover a wide range of operations in which telephony is supported by computers, including obtaining information from databases via telephone, interactive telephone transactions, and customer and technical support applications. We were cooperating with the patent holder to determine if we are currently using any of the processes that are protected by its patents but have not had any communication with them on this issue since mid-2004. If we

determine that we are utilizing the patent holder's intellectual property, we expect to commence negotiations on a license agreement.

On June 24, 2004, one of our subsidiaries, Frontier Subsidiary Telco Inc., received a "Notice of Indemnity Claim" from Citibank, N.A., that is related to a complaint pending against Citibank and others in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York as part of the Global Crossing bankruptcy proceeding. Citibank bases its claim for indemnity on the provisions of a credit agreement that was entered into in October 2000 between Citibank and our subsidiary. We purchased Frontier Subsidiary Telco, Inc., in June 2001 as part of our acquisition of the Frontier telephone companies. The complaint against Citibank, for which it seeks indemnification, alleges that the seller improperly used a portion of the proceeds from the Frontier transaction to pay off the Citibank credit agreement, thereby defrauding certain debt holders of Global Crossing North America Inc. Although the credit agreement was paid off at the closing of the Frontier transaction, Citibank claims the indemnification obligation survives. Damages sought against Citibank and its co-defendants could exceed \$1.0 billion. In August 2004 we notified Citibank by letter that we believe its claims for indemnification are invalid and are not supported by applicable law. We have received no further communications from Citibank since our August 2004 letter.

We are party to other legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. The outcome of individual matters is not predictable. However, we believe that the ultimate resolution of all such matters, after considering insurance coverage, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or our cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None in fourth quarter 2005.

13

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our Executive Officers as of February 7, 2006 were:

Name	Age	Current Position and Officer
Mary Agnes Wilderotter	51	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
John H. Casey, III	49	Executive Vice President
Jerry Elliott	46	President and Acting Chief Financial Officer
Hilary E. Glassman	43	Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Peter B. Hayes	48	Executive Vice President Sales, Marketing and Business Devel
Robert J. Larson	46	Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
Daniel J. McCarthy	41	Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Cecilia K. McKenney	43	Senior Vice President, Human Resources

There is no family relationship between directors or executive officers. The term of office of each of the foregoing officers of Citizens will continue until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

MARY AGNES WILDEROTTER has been associated with Citizens since November 2004.

She was elected Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in December 2005. Previously, she was President and Chief Executive Officer from November 2004 to December 2005. Prior to joining Citizens, she was Senior Vice President - Worldwide Public Sector in 2004, Microsoft Corp. and Senior Vice President - Worldwide Business Strategy, Microsoft Corp., 2002 to 2004. Before that she was President and Chief Executive Officer, Wink Communications, 1997 to 2002.

JOHN H. CASEY, III has been associated with Citizens since November 1999. He is currently Executive Vice President. Previously, he was Executive Vice President and President and Chief Operating Officer of our ILEC Sector from July 2002 to December 2004. He was Vice President of Citizens, President and Chief Operating Officer, ILEC Sector from January 2002 to July 2002, Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, ILEC Sector from February 2000 to January 2002, and Vice President, ILEC Sector from December 1999 to February 2000.

JERRY ELLIOTT has been associated with Citizens since March 2002. He was elected President in December 2005 and remains Acting Chief Financial Officer until a successor Chief Financial Officer joins the Company. Previously, he was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from July 2004 to December 2005. He was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from December 2002 to July 2004 and Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from March 2002 to December 2002. Prior to joining Citizens, he was Managing Director of Morgan Stanley's Media and Communications Investment Banking Group.

HILARY E. GLASSMAN has been associated with Citizens since July 2005. Prior to joining Citizens, from February 2003, she was associated with Sandler O'Neill & Partners, L.P., an investment bank with a specialized financial institutions practice, first as Managing Director, Associate General Counsel and then as Managing Director, Deputy General Counsel. From February 2000 through February 2003, Ms. Glassman was Vice President and General Counsel of Newview Technologies, Inc. (formerly e-Steel Corporation), a privately-held software company.

PETER B. HAYES has been associated with Citizens since February 2005. He is currently Executive Vice President, Sales, Marketing and Business Development. Previously, he was Senior Vice President, Sales, Marketing and Business Development from February 2005 to December 2005. Prior to joining Citizens, he was associated with Microsoft Corp. and served as Vice President, Public Sector, Europe, Middle East, Africa from 2003 to 2005 and Vice President and General Manager, Microsoft U.S. Government from 1997 to 2003.

ROBERT J. LARSON has been associated with Citizens since July 2000. He was elected Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of Citizens in December 2002. Previously, he was Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer from July 2000 to December 2002. Prior to joining Citizens, he was Vice President and Controller of Century Communications Corp.

DANIEL J. McCARTHY has been associated with Citizens since December 1990. He is currently Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Previously, he was Senior Vice President, Field Operations from December 2004 to December 2005. He was Senior Vice President Broadband Operations from January 2004 to December 2004, President and Chief Operating Officer of Electric Lightwave from January 2002 to December 2004, President and Chief Operating Officer, Public Services Sector from November 2001 to January 2002, Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Public Services Sector from March 2001 to November 2001 and Vice President, Citizens Arizona Energy from April 1998 to March 2001.

CECILIA K. McKENNEY has been associated with Citizens since February 2006. Prior

to joining Citizens, she was the Group Vice President, Headquarters Human Resources of The Pepsi Bottling Group (PBG) from 2004 to 2005. Previously at PBG, Ms. McKenney was the Vice President, Headquarters Human Resources from 2000 to 2004.

15

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

PART II

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CZN. The following table indicates the high and low prices per share during the periods indicated.

	2	2005	20	0 4		
	High	Low	High	Low		
First Quarter	\$14.05	\$12.25	\$13.25	\$11.37		
Second Quarter	\$13.74	\$12.16	\$13.54	\$12.06		
Third Quarter	\$13.98	\$13.05	\$14.80	\$12.04		
Fourth Quarter	\$13.57	\$12.08	\$14.63	\$13.11		

As of January 31, 2006, the approximate number of security holders of record of our common stock was 26,226. This information was obtained from our transfer agent.

DIVIDENDS

The amount and timing of dividends payable on our common stock are within the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. In 2004, we paid a special, non-recurring dividend of \$2.00 per share of common stock, and instituted a regular annual dividend of \$1.00 per share of common stock to be paid quarterly. Cash dividends paid to shareholders were approximately \$338.4 million and \$832.8 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. There are no material restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. The table below sets forth dividends paid during the periods indicated.

2005	2004
\$ 0.25	\$ -
\$ 0.25	\$ -
\$ 0.25	\$ 2.25
\$ 0.25	\$ 0.25
	\$ 0.25 \$ 0.25 \$ 0.25 \$ 0.25

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES, USE OF PROCEEDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES

None.

16

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The following tables display issuer purchases of equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Period	(a) Total Number of Shares Purchaed		<pre>(c) Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs</pre>	(d) Maximu Approximi Dollar Val Shares th May Yet Purchas Under the or Progr
January 1, 2005 to January 31, 2005				
Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ – \$ –	N/A	\$ – N/A
February 1, 2005 to February 28, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ - \$ -	– N/A	\$ – N/A
March 1, 2005 to March 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	_ 128,049	\$ - \$ 12.62	– N/A	\$ – N/A
Totals January 1, 2005 to March 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	_ 128,049	\$ – \$ 12.62	– N/A	\$ – N/A
April 1, 2005 to April 30, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ - \$ -	– N/A	\$ – N/A
May 1, 2005 to May 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ – \$ –	– N/A	\$ – N/A
June 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	1,400,000	\$ 13.28 \$ -	1,400,000 N/A	\$231,400,0 N/A
Totals April 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	1,400,000	\$ 13.28 \$ -	1,400,000 N/A	\$231,400,0 N/A

(d) Maximu Approximi (c) Total Number Dollar Val

Edgar Filing:	CITIZENS	COMMUNICATI	IONS CO - For	m 10-K/A
- 3 3				

Period	(a) Total Number of Shares Purchaed	-	of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs	Shares th May Yet Purchas Under the or Progr
July 1, 2005 to July 31, 2005				
Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ – \$ –	N/A	\$231,400, N/A
August 1, 2005 to August 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	6,576,100 _	\$ 13.68 \$ -	6,576,100 N/A	\$141,500, N/A
September 1, 2005 to September 30, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	4,680,400 629	\$ 13.56 \$ 13.51	4,680,400 N/A	\$ 78,000, N/A
Totals July 1, 2005 to September 30, 200 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	05 11,256,500 629	\$ 13.62 \$ 13.51	11,256,500 N/A	\$ 78,000, N/A
October 1, 2005 to October 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ – \$ –	– N/A	\$ 78,000, N/A
November 1, 2005 to November 30, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	375,000 12,435	\$ 13.06 \$ 12.17	375,000 N/A	\$ 73,100, N/A
December 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	5,743,656 1,155	\$ 12.73 \$ 12.85	5,743,656 N/A	\$ N/A
Totals October 1, 2005 to December 31, 2 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	2005 6,118,656 13,590	\$ 12.75 \$ 12.23	6,118,656 N/A	\$ N/A
Totals January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	2005 18,775,156 142,268	\$ 13.32 \$ 12.59	18,775,156 N/A	\$ N/A

		<i>.</i>	Z	d) Maximu Approximi
		(C)		ollar Val
				Shares th
	(a) Total	Pu	ırchased as Part	May Yet
	Number of (b)	Average	of Publicly	Purchas
	Shares Pr	rice Paid A	Announced Plans U	Jnder the
Per	iod Purchaed pe	er Share	or Programs	or Progr

January 1, 2004 to January 31, 2004

Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	_	\$ \$		N/A	_	\$ - N/A
February 1, 2004 to February 28, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ – N/A
March 1, 2004 to March 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- 3,123	\$ \$ 12.	_ .64	N/A	-	\$ – N/A
Totals January 1, 2004 to March 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	_ 3,123	\$ \$ 12.	_ .64	N/A	_	\$ – N/A
April 1, 2004 to April 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ – N/A
May 1, 2004 to May 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ \$	-	N/A	_	\$ – N/A
June 1, 2004 to June 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)		\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ – N/A
Totals April 1, 2004 to June 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)		\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ – N/A

Period	Shares	(b) Average Price Paid	(c) Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs	Purchas Under the
July 1, 2004 to July 31, 2004				
Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ – \$ –	N/A	\$ – N/A
August 1, 2004 to August 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	_ 1,503,748	\$ - \$ 14.32	– N/A	\$ – N/A
September 1, 2004 to September 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ - \$ -	– N/A	\$ – N/A
Totals July 1, 2004 to September 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	 1,503,748	\$ - \$ 14.32	– N/A	\$ – N/A

October 1, 2004 to October 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	-	\$ \$		N/A	-	\$ – N/A
November 1, 2004 to November 30, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ \$	_	N/A	-	\$ - N/A
December 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	- -	\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ - N/A
Totals October 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	! 	\$ \$	-	N/A	-	\$ - N/A
Totals January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004 Share Repurchase Program (1) Employee Transactions (2)	1 1,506,871	\$ \$ 14	_ 1.32	N/A	_	\$ – N/A

- (1) On May 25, 2005, our Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to \$250.0 million of the Company's common stock, either in the open market or through negotiated transactions. This share repurchase program commenced on June 13, 2005 and was completed during December of 2005.
- (2) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the terms of grants under employee stock compensation plans) to offset minimum tax withholding obligations that occur upon the vesting of restricted shares. The Company's stock compensation plans provide that the value of shares withheld shall be the average of the high and low price of the Company's common stock on the date the relevant transaction occurs.

20

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31, (\$ in thousands, except per share amounts) _____ _____ 2005 2004 2003 200 _____ ____ \$ 2,162,479 \$ 2,168,422 \$ 2,424,174 \$ 2,64 Revenue (1) Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary expense and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principle (2) \$ 200,168 \$ 66,919 \$ 117,703 \$ (82 Net income (loss) \$ 202,375 \$ 72,150 \$ 187,852 \$ (68 Basic income (loss) per share of common stock from continuing operations before extraordinary expense and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principle (2)\$0.59 \$0.22 \$Available for common shareholders per basic share\$0.60 \$0.24 \$Available for common shareholders per diluted share \$0.60 \$0.23 \$Cash dividends declared (and paid) per common share \$1.00 \$2.50 \$ 0.42 \$ 0.67 \$ 0.64 \$ – Ś

As of December 31,

26

	2005	2004	2003	200	
Total assets	\$ 6,412,109	\$ 6,668,419	\$ 7,445,545	\$ 8 , 14	
Long-term debt	\$ 3,999,376	\$ 4,266,998	\$ 4,195,626	\$ 4,95	
Equity units (3)	\$ –	\$ –	\$ 460,000	\$ 46	
Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable					
Convertible Preferred Securities (4)	\$ –	\$ –	\$ 201,250	\$ 20	
Shareholders' equity	\$ 1,041,809	\$ 1,362,240	\$ 1,415,183	\$ 1,17	

- (1) Represents revenue from continuing operations. Revenue from acquisitions contributed \$569.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Revenue from gas operations sold was \$137.7 million in 2003 and \$218.8 million in 2001. Revenue from electric operations sold was \$9.7 million, \$67.4 million, \$76.6 million and \$94.3 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Total revenue associated with these operations is available in Note 22, "Segment Information."
- (2) Extraordinary expense represents an extraordinary after tax expense of \$43.6 million related to the discontinuance of the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 to our local exchange telephone operations in 2001. The cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles represents the \$65.8 million after tax non-cash gain resulting from the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 in 2003, and the write-off of ELI's goodwill of \$39.8 million resulting from the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 in 2002.
- (3) On August 17, 2004, we issued common stock to equity unit holders in settlement of the equity purchase contract.
- (4) The consolidation of this item changed effective January 1, 2004 as a result of the adoption of FIN 46R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities." See Note 15 for a complete discussion.

21

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K/A contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the statements. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such as "believes," "anticipates," "expects" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements (including oral representations) are only predictions or statements of current plans, which we review continuously. Forward-looking statements may differ from actual future results due to, but not limited to, and our future results may be materially affected by, any of the following possibilities:

- * Changes in the number of our revenue generating units, which consists of access lines plus high-speed internet subscribers;
- * The effects of competition from wireless, other wireline carriers (through voice over internet protocol (VOIP) or otherwise), high speed cable modems and cable telephony;
- * The effects of general and local economic and employment conditions on

our revenues;

- * Our ability to effectively manage our operations, costs, capital spending, regulatory compliance and service quality;
- Our ability to successfully introduce new product offerings including our ability to offer bundled service packages on terms that are both profitable to us and attractive to our customers;
- Our ability to sell enhanced and data services in order to offset ongoing declines in revenue from local services, access services and subsidies;
- * Our ability to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which requires management to assess its internal control systems and disclose whether the internal control systems are effective, and the identification of any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting;
- * Changes in accounting policies or practices adopted voluntarily or as required by generally accepted accounting principles or regulators;
- * The effects of changes in regulation in the communications industry as a result of federal and state legislation and regulation, including potential changes in access charges and subsidy payments, and regulatory network upgrade and reliability requirements;
- * Our ability to comply with federal and state regulation (including state rate of return limitations on our earnings) and our ability to successfully renegotiate state regulatory plans as they expire or come up for renewal from time to time;
- * Our ability to manage our operating expenses, capital expenditures, pay dividends and reduce or refinance our debt;
- * Adverse changes in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings organizations, which could limit or restrict the availability, and/or increase the cost of financing;
- * The effects of greater than anticipated competition requiring new pricing, marketing strategies or new product offerings and the risk that we will not respond on a timely or profitable basis;
- * The effects of bankruptcies in the telecommunications industry which could result in more price competition and potential bad debts;

22

- * The effects of technological changes and competition on our capital expenditures and product and service offerings, including the lack of assurance that our ongoing network improvements will be sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities and quality of competing networks;
- * The effects of increased medical, retiree and pension expenses and related funding requirements;
- * Changes in income tax rates, tax laws, regulations or rulings, and/or federal or state tax assessments;
- * The effect of changes in the communications market, including

significantly increased price and service competition;

- The effects of state regulatory cash management policies on our ability to transfer cash among our subsidiaries and to the parent company;
- * Our ability to successfully renegotiate expiring union contracts covering approximately 1,468 employees that are scheduled to expire during 2006;
- * Our ability to pay a \$1.00 per common share dividend annually may be affected by our cash flow from operations, amount of capital expenditures, debt service requirements, cash paid for income taxes (which will increase in the future) and our liquidity;
- * The effects of any future liabilities or compliance costs in connection with worker health and safety matters;
- * The effects of any unfavorable outcome with respect to any of our current or future legal, governmental, or regulatory proceedings, audits or disputes; and
- * The effects of more general factors, including changes in economic, business and industry conditions.

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, could cause financial information to vary from management's forward-looking statements included in this report. You should consider these important factors, as well as the risks set forth under Item 1A. "Risk Factors" above, in evaluating any statement in this Form 10-K/A or otherwise made by us or on our behalf. The following information is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this report. We have no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a communications company providing services to rural areas and small and medium-sized towns and cities as an incumbent local exchange carrier, or ILEC. We offer our ILEC services under the "Frontier" name. In addition, we provide competitive local exchange carrier, or CLEC, services to business customers and to other communications carriers in certain metropolitan areas in the western United States through Electric Lightwave, LLC, or ELI, our wholly-owned subsidiary. In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell ELI and we expect the sale to close in the third quarter of 2006.

Competition in the telecommunications industry is intense and increasing. We experience competition from many telecommunications service providers including cable operators, wireless carriers, voice over internet protocol (VOIP) providers, long distance providers, competitive local exchange carriers, internet providers and other wireline carriers. We believe that competition will continue to intensify in 2006 across all products and in all of our markets. Our Frontier business experienced erosion in access lines and switched access minutes in 2005 as a result of competition. Competition in our markets may result in reduced revenues in 2006.

The communications industry is undergoing significant changes. The market is extremely competitive, resulting in lower prices. Demand and pricing for certain CLEC services have decreased substantially, particularly for long-haul services. These trends are likely to continue and result in a challenging revenue environment. These factors could also result in more bankruptcies in the sector and therefore affect our ability to collect money owed to us by carriers. 23

Revenues from data and internet services such as high-speed internet continue to increase as a percentage of our total revenues and revenues from services such as local line and access charges and subsidies are decreasing as a percentage of our revenues. These factors, along with increasing operating costs, could cause our profitability and our cash generated by operations to decrease.

(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we used cash flows from continuing operations, the proceeds from the sale of non-strategic assets, stock option exercises and cash and cash equivalents to fund capital expenditures, dividends, interest payments, debt repayments and stock repurchases. As of December 31, 2005, we had cash and cash equivalents aggregating \$265.8 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, our capital expenditures were \$268.5 million, including \$252.2 million for the Frontier segment, \$16.1 million for the ELI segment and \$0.2 million of general capital expenditures. We continue to closely scrutinize all of our capital projects, emphasize return on investment and focus our capital expenditures on areas and services that have the greatest opportunities with respect to revenue growth and cost reduction. For example, we will allocate significant capital to services such as high-speed internet in areas that are growing or demonstrate meaningful demand as well as the launch of new products such as wireless and VOIP services.

Increasing competition, offering new services such as wireless and VOIP, and improving the capabilities or reducing the maintenance costs of our plant may cause our capital expenditures to increase in the future. For 2006, we expect our capital expenditures to increase in order to build wireless data networks and expand the capabilities of our data networks.

As of December 31, 2005, we have available lines of credit with financial institutions in the aggregate amount of \$250.0 million. Associated facility fees vary, depending on our debt leverage ratio, and are 0.375% per annum as of December 31, 2005. The expiration date for the facility is October 29, 2009. During the term of the facility we may borrow, repay and reborrow funds. The credit facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be used to fund dividend payments. We have never borrowed any money under the facility.

Our ongoing annual dividends of \$1.00 per share under our current policy utilize a significant portion of our cash generated by operations and therefore limits our operating and financial flexibility. While we believe that the amount of our dividends will allow for adequate amounts of cash flow for other purposes, any reduction in cash generated by operations and any increases in capital expenditures, interest expense or cash taxes would reduce the amount of cash generated in excess of dividends. Losses of access lines, increases in competition, lower subsidy and access revenues and the other factors described above are expected to reduce our cash generated by operations and may require us to increase capital expenditures. The downgrades in our credit ratings in July 2004 to below investment grade may make it more difficult and expensive to refinance our maturing debt. We have in recent years paid relatively low amounts of cash taxes. We expect that over the next several years our cash taxes will increase substantially.

We believe our operating cash flows, existing cash balances, and credit facilities will be adequate to finance our working capital requirements, fund capital expenditures, make required debt payments through 2007, pay taxes, pay

dividends to our shareholders in accordance with our dividend policy, and support our short-term and long-term operating strategies. We have approximately \$227.8 million, \$37.9 million and \$701.1 million of debt maturing in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Share Repurchase Programs

On May 25, 2005, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to \$250.0 million of our common stock. This share repurchase program commenced on June 13, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, we completed the repurchase program and had repurchased a total of 18,775,156 common shares at an aggregate cost of \$250.0 million. In February 2006, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to \$300.0 million of our common stock in public or private transactions over the following twelve-month period. We may in the future purchase additional shares of our common stock.

Issuance of Common Stock

On August 17, 2004 we issued 32,073,633 shares of common stock, including 3,591,000 treasury shares, to our equity unit holders in settlement of the equity purchase contract component of the equity units. With respect to the \$460.0 million senior note component of the equity units, we repurchased \$300.0 million principal amount of these notes in July 2004. The remaining \$160.0 million of the senior notes were repriced and a portion was remarketed on August 12, 2004 as our 6.75% notes due August 17, 2006.

24

Issuance of Debt Securities

On November 8, 2004, we issued an aggregate \$700.0 million principal amount of 6.25% senior notes due January 15, 2013 through a registered underwritten public offering. Proceeds from the sale were used to redeem our outstanding \$700.0 million of 8.50% Notes due 2006.

Debt Reduction and Debt Exchanges

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we retired an aggregate principal amount of \$36.4 million of debt, including \$30.0 million of 5% Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities due 2036 (EPPICS) that were converted into our common stock. During the second quarter of 2005, we entered into two debt-for-debt exchanges of our debt securities. As a result, \$50.0 million of our 7.625% notes due 2008 were exchanged for approximately \$52.2 million of our 9.00% notes due 2031. The 9.00% notes are callable on the same general terms and conditions as the 7.625% notes exchanged. No cash was exchanged in these transactions, however a non-cash pre-tax loss of approximately \$3.2 million was recognized in accordance with EITF No. 96-19, "Debtor's Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments," which is included in other income (loss), net. In February 2006, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to \$150.0 million of our outstanding debt securities over the following twelve-month period. These repurchases may require us to pay premiums, which would result in pre-tax losses to be recorded in other income (loss), net.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we retired an aggregate \$1,362.0 million of debt (including \$148.0 million of EPPICS conversions), representing approximately 28% of total debt outstanding at December 31, 2003.

During August and September 2004, we repurchased an additional \$108.2 million of our 6.75% notes which, in addition to the \$300.0 million we purchased in July,

resulted in a pre-tax charge of approximately \$20.1 million during the third quarter of 2004, but resulted in an annual reduction in interest expense of about \$27.6 million per year. See the discussion below concerning EPPICS conversions for further information regarding the issuance of common stock.

We may from time to time repurchase our debt in the open market, through tender offers or privately negotiated transactions. We may also exchange existing debt obligations for newly issued debt obligations.

Interest Rate Management

In order to manage our interest expense, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements. Under the terms of the agreements, which qualify for hedge accounting, we make semi-annual, floating rate interest payments based on six month LIBOR and receive a fixed rate on the notional amount. The underlying variable rate on these swaps is set in arrears.

The notional amounts of fixed-rate indebtedness hedged as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 were \$500.0 million and \$300.0 million, respectively. Such contracts require us to pay variable rates of interest (average pay rates of approximately 8.60% and 6.12% as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively) and receive fixed rates of interest (average receive rates of 8.46% and 8.44% as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively). All swaps are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 (as amended) as fair value hedges. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the cash interest savings resulting from these interest rate swaps totaled approximately \$2.5 million and \$9.4 million, respectively.

During September 2005, we entered into a series of forward rate agreements that fixed the underlying variable rate component of some of our swaps at the market rate as of the date of execution for certain future rate-setting dates. At December 31, 2005, the rates obtained under these forward rate agreements were below market rates. Changes in the fair value of these forward rate agreements, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, are recorded in other income (loss), net. Gains of \$1.3 million and \$0.6 million, respectively, were recorded during the third and fourth quarters of 2005.

Sale of Non-Strategic Investments

In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell all of the outstanding membership interests in ELI to Integra Telecom Holdings, Inc. (Integra) for \$247.0 million, including \$243.0 million in cash plus the assumption of approximately \$4.0 million in capital lease obligations, subject to customary adjustments under the terms of the agreement. We anticipate the recognition of a pre-tax gain on the sale of ELI of approximately \$130.0 million. The transaction is expected to close in the third quarter of 2006 and is subject to regulatory and other customary approvals and conditions, as well as the funding of Integra's fully committed financing. We expect that for periods subsequent to December 31, 2005, ELI will be accounted for as a discontinued operation.

25

On February 1, 2005, we sold shares of Prudential Financial, Inc. for approximately \$1.1 million in cash, and we recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately \$0.5 million that is included in other income (loss), net.

On March 15, 2005, we completed the sale of our conferencing business for approximately \$43.6 million in cash. The pre-tax gain on the sale of CCUSA was \$14.1 million.

In June 2005, we sold for cash our interests in certain key man life insurance policies on the lives of Leonard Tow, our former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and his wife, a former director. The cash surrender value of the policies purchased by Dr. Tow totaled approximately \$24.2 million, and we recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately \$457,000 that is included in other income (loss), net.

During 2005, we sold shares of Global Crossing Limited for approximately \$1.1 million in cash, and we recognized a pre-tax gain for the same amount that is included in other income (loss), net.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other relationship with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have a material current or future effect upon our financial statements.

Future Commitments

A summary of our future contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Contractual Obligations:

			Payment du	due by period		
(\$ in thousands)		Less than 1 year 				
Long-term debt obligations,						
excluding interest (see Note 11) (1)	\$4,201,730	\$227 , 693	\$738 , 709	\$ 5 , 393		
ELI capital lease obligations (see Note 25)	4,287	41	236	310		
Operating lease obligations (see Note 25)	92,088	19,062	24,445	19 , 307		
Purchase obligations (see Note 25)	76,384	30,619	29,354	11,296		
Other long-term liabilities (2)	•	_		_		
Total		\$277,415		\$36,306		

 Includes interest rate swaps (\$(8.7) million).
 Consists of our Equity Providing Preferred Income Convertible Securities (EPPICS) reflected on our balance sheet.

At December 31, 2005, we have outstanding performance letters of credit totaling \$22.4 million.

Management Succession and Strategic Alternatives Expenses

On July 11, 2004, our Board of Directors announced that it completed its review of our financial and strategic alternatives. In 2004, we expensed \$90.6 million

of costs related to management succession and our exploration of financial and strategic alternatives. Included are \$36.6 million of non-cash expenses for the acceleration of stock benefits, cash expenses of \$19.2 million for advisory fees, \$19.3 million for severance and retention arrangements and \$15.5 million primarily for tax reimbursements.

26

EPPICS

In 1996, our consolidated wholly-owned subsidiary, Citizens Utilities Trust (the Trust), issued, in an underwritten public offering, 4,025,000 shares of 5% Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities due 2036 (Trust Convertible Preferred Securities or EPPICS), representing preferred undivided interests in the assets of the Trust, with a liquidation preference of \$50 per security (for a total liquidation amount of \$201.3 million). These securities have an adjusted conversion price of \$11.46 per Citizens common share. The conversion price was reduced from \$13.30 to \$11.46 during the third quarter of 2004 as a result of our \$2.00 per share special, non-recurring dividend paid on our common stock. The proceeds from the issuance of the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities and a Company capital contribution were used to purchase \$207.5 million aggregate liquidation amount of 5% Partnership Convertible Preferred Securities due 2036 from another wholly owned consolidated subsidiary, Citizens Utilities Capital L.P. (the Partnership). The proceeds from the issuance of the Partnership Convertible Preferred Securities and a Company capital contribution were used to purchase from us \$211.8 million aggregate principal amount of 5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2036. The sole assets of the Trust are the Partnership Convertible Preferred Securities, and our Convertible Subordinated Debentures are substantially all the assets of the Partnership. Our obligations under the agreements related to the issuances of such securities, taken together, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by us of the Trust's obligations relating to the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities and the Partnership's obligations relating to the Partnership Convertible Preferred Securities.

In accordance with the terms of the issuances, we paid the annual 5% interest in quarterly installments on the Convertible Subordinated Debentures in 2005, 2004 and 2003. Only cash was paid (net of investment returns) to the Partnership in payment of the interest on the Convertible Subordinated Debentures. The cash was then distributed by the Partnership to the Trust and then by the Trust to the holders of the EPPICS.

As of December 31, 2005, EPPICS representing a total principal amount of \$178.0 million had been converted into 14,237,807 shares of our common stock, and a total of \$23.3 million remains outstanding to third parties. Our long-term debt footnote indicates \$33.8 million of EPPICS outstanding at December 31, 2005 of which \$10.5 million is intercompany debt. Our accounting treatment of the EPPICS debt is in accordance with FIN 46R (see Notes 2 and 15).

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46R (revised December 2003) (FIN 46R), "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities," effective January 1, 2004. Accordingly, the Trust holding the EPPICS and the related Citizens Utilities Capital L.P. are deconsolidated.

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indentures and credit facility agreement include the timely payment of principal and interest when due, the maintenance of our corporate existence, keeping proper books and records in accordance with GAAP, restrictions on the allowance of liens on our assets and the provision of guarantees of debt by our subsidiaries, and restrictions on asset sales and transfers, mergers and other changes in corporate control. We

currently have no restrictions on the payment of dividends either by contract, rule or regulation.

Our \$200.0 million term loan facility with the Rural Telephone Finance Cooperative (RTFC) contains a maximum leverage ratio covenant. Under the leverage ratio covenant, we are required to maintain a ratio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash and cash equivalents in excess of \$50.0 million to (ii) consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the agreements) over the last four quarters of no greater than 4.00 to 1.

Our \$250.0 million credit facility contains a maximum leverage ratio covenant. Under the leverage ratio covenant, we are required to maintain a ratio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash and cash equivalents in excess of \$50.0 million to (ii) consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the agreement) over the last four quarters of no greater than 4.50 to 1. Although the credit facility is unsecured, it will be equally and ratably secured by certain liens and equally and ratably guaranteed by certain of our subsidiaries if we issue debt that is secured or guaranteed. We are in compliance with all of our debt and credit facility covenants.

Divestitures

On August 24, 1999, our Board of Directors approved a plan of divestiture for our public utilities services businesses, which included gas, electric and water and wastewater businesses. We have sold all of these properties. All of the agreements relating to the sales provide that we will indemnify the buyer against certain liabilities (typically liabilities relating to events that occurred prior to sale), including environmental liabilities, for claims made by specified dates and that exceed threshold amounts specified in each agreement.

In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell ELI. We anticipate the recognition of a pre-tax gain on the sale of ELI of approximately \$130.0 million. ELI had revenues of \$159.2 million and operating income of \$18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2005, ELI's net assets totaled \$123.1 million.

27

Discontinued Operations

On March 15, 2005, we completed the sale of Conference Call USA, LLC (CCUSA) for \$43.6 million in cash, subject to adjustments under the terms of the agreement. The pre-tax gain on the sale of CCUSA was \$14.1 million. Our after-tax gain was \$1.2 million. The book income taxes recorded upon sale are primarily attributable to a low tax basis in the assets sold.

Rural Telephone Bank

In August 2005, the Board of Directors of the Rural Telephone Bank (RTB) voted to dissolve the bank. In November 2005, the Administration approved the appropriate provisions in the 2006 federal budget necessary for dissolution of the RTB. We expect to receive during the second guarter of 2006 approximately

\$64.6 million in cash from the dissolution of the RTB, which would result in a pre-tax gain of approximately \$62.0 million when we receive the cash.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting our consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustment prior to their publication. Uncertainties with respect to such estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of financial

statements; accordingly, it is possible that actual results could differ from those estimates and changes to estimates could occur in the near term. The preparation of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of the contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are used when accounting for allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets, depreciation and amortization, employee benefit plans, income taxes, contingencies, and pension and postretirement benefits expenses among others.

Telecommunications Bankruptcies

Our estimate of anticipated losses related to telecommunications bankruptcies is a "critical accounting estimate." We have significant on-going normal course business relationships with many telecom providers, some of which have filed for bankruptcy. We generally reserve approximately 95% of the net outstanding pre-bankruptcy balances owed to us and believe that our estimate of the net realizable value of the amounts owed to us by bankrupt entities is appropriate. In 2005 and 2004, we had no "critical estimates" related to telecommunications bankruptcies.

Asset Impairment In 2005 and 2004, we had no "critical estimates" related to asset impairments.

Depreciation and Amortization

The calculation of depreciation and amortization expense is based on the estimated economic useful lives of the underlying property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets. An independent study of the estimated useful lives of our plant assets was completed in 2005. We adopted the lives proposed in that study effective October 1, 2005.

Intangibles

Our indefinite lived intangibles consist of goodwill and trade name, which resulted from the purchase of ILEC properties. We test for impairment of these assets annually, or more frequently, as circumstances warrant. All of our ILEC properties share similar economic characteristics and as a result, our reporting unit is the ILEC segment. In determining fair value of goodwill during 2005 we compared the net book value of the ILEC assets to trading values of our publicly traded common stock. Additionally, we utilized a range of prices to gauge sensitivity. Our test determined that fair value exceeded book value of goodwill. An independent third party appraiser analyzed trade name.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Our estimates of pension expense, other post retirement benefits including retiree medical benefits and related liabilities are "critical accounting estimates." We sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering a significant number of our employees and other post retirement benefit plans that provide medical, dental, life insurance benefits and other benefits for covered retired employees and their beneficiaries and covered dependents. The accounting results for pension and post retirement benefit costs and obligations are dependent upon various actuarial assumptions applied in the determination of such amounts. These actuarial assumptions include the following: discount rates, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, future compensation increases, employee turnover, healthcare cost trend rates, expected retirement age, optional form of benefit and mortality. We review these assumptions for changes annually with its outside actuaries. We consider our discount rate and expected long-term rate of return on plan assets to be our most critical assumptions.

The discount rate is used to value, on a present basis, our pension and post retirement benefit obligation as of the balance sheet date. The same rate is also used in the interest cost component of the pension and post retirement benefit cost determination for the following year. The measurement date used in the selection of our discount rate is the balance sheet date. Our discount rate assumption is determined annually with assistance from our actuaries based on the duration of our pension and postretirement benefit liabilities, the pattern of expected future benefit payments and the prevailing rates available on long-term, high quality corporate bonds that approximate the benefit obligation. In making this determination we consider, among other things, the yields on the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve and Bloomberg Finance. This rate can change from year-to-year based on market conditions that impact corporate bond yields. Our discount rate declined from 6.00% at year-end 2004 to 5.625% at year-end 2005.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is applied in the determination of periodic pension and post retirement benefit cost as a reduction in the computation of the expense. In developing the expected long-term rate of return assumption, we considered published surveys of expected market returns, 10 and 20 year actual returns of various major indices, and our own historical 5-year and 10-year investment returns. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on an asset allocation assumption of 30% to 45% in fixed income securities, 45% to 55% in equity securities and 5% to 15% in alternative investments. We review our asset allocation at least annually and make changes when considered appropriate. In 2005, we did not change our expected long-term rate of return from the 8.25% used in 2004. Our pension plan assets are valued at actual market value as of the measurement date.

Accounting standards require that we record an additional minimum pension liability when the plan's "accumulated benefit obligation" exceeds the fair market value of plan assets at the pension plan measurement (balance sheet) date. In the fourth quarter of 2004, mainly due to a decrease in the year-end discount rate, we recorded an additional minimum pension liability in the amount of \$17.4 million with a corresponding charge to shareholders' equity of \$10.7 million, net of taxes of \$6.7 million. In the fourth quarter of 2005, primarily due to another decrease in the year-end discount rate, we recorded an additional minimum pension liability in the amount of \$36.4 million with a corresponding charge to shareholders' equity of \$22.5 million, net of taxes of \$13.9 million. These adjustments did not impact our net income or cash flows.

Actual results that differ from our assumptions are added or subtracted to our balance of unrecognized actuarial gains and losses. For example, if the year-end discount rate used to value the plan's projected benefit obligation decreases from the prior year-end then the plan's actuarial loss will increase. If the discount rate increases from the prior year-end then the plan's actuarial loss will decrease. Similarly, the difference generated from the plan's actual asset performance as compared to expected performance would be included in the balance of unrecognized gains and losses.

The impact of the balance of accumulated actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the computation of pension cost only to the extent this balance exceeds 10% of the greater of the plan's projected benefit obligation or market value of plan assets. If this occurs, that portion of gain or loss that is in excess of 10% is amortized over the estimated future service period of plan participants as a component of pension cost. The level of amortization is affected each year by the change in actuarial gains and losses and could potentially be eliminated if the gain/loss activity reduces the net accumulated gain/loss balance to a level below the 10% threshold.

We expect that our pension and other postretirement benefit expenses for 2006 will be \$15.0 million to \$18.0 million (they were \$19.0 million in 2005) and that no contribution will be required to be made by us to the pension plan in

2006. No contribution was made to our pension plan during 2005.

Income Taxes Our effective tax rate is below statutory rate levels as a result of the completion of audits with federal and state taxing authorities and changes in the structure of certain of our subsidiaries.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and our Audit Committee has reviewed our disclosures relating to them.

29

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." SFAS No. 143 applies to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002, and addresses financial accounting and reporting obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. We adopted SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from acquisition, construction, development or normal use of the assets and requires that a legal liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized when incurred, recorded at fair value and classified as a liability in the balance sheet. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity will capitalize the cost and increase the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. The liability is then accreted to its present value each period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the related asset. At the settlement date, we will settle the obligation for our recorded amount or recognize a gain or loss upon settlement.

Depreciation expense for our wireline operations had historically included an additional provision for cost of removal. Effective with the adoption of SFAS No. 143, on January 1, 2003, the Company ceased recognition of the cost of removal provision in depreciation expense and eliminated the cumulative cost of removal included in accumulated depreciation, as the Company has no legal obligation to remove certain long-lived assets. The cumulative effect of retroactively applying these changes to periods prior to January 1, 2003, resulted in an after tax non-cash gain of approximately \$65.8 million recognized in 2003.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation and amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements. This statement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. We have adopted the expanded disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment," (SFAS No. 123R). SFAS No. 123R requires that stock-based employee compensation be recorded as a charge to earnings. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission required adoption of SFAS No. 123R for annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, we will adopt SFAS 123R commencing January 1, 2006 and expect to recognize approximately \$2.8 million of expense

related to the non-vested portion of previously granted stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Variable Interest Entities

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003) (FIN 46R), "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities," which addresses how a business enterprise should evaluate whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity through means other than voting rights and accordingly should consolidate the entity. FIN 46R replaces FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities," which was issued in January 2003. We are required to apply FIN 46R to variable interests in variable interest entities, or VIEs, created after December 31, 2003. For any VIEs that must be consolidated under FIN 46R that were created before January 1, 2004, the assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interests of the VIE initially would be measured at their carrying amounts with any difference between the net amount added to the balance sheet and any previously recognized interest being recognized as the cumulative effect of an accounting change. If determining the carrying amounts is not practicable, fair value at the date FIN 46R first applies may be used to measure the assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interest of the VIE. We reviewed all of our investments and determined that the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities (EPPICS), issued by our consolidated wholly-owned subsidiary, Citizens Utilities Trust and the related Citizens Utilities Capital L.P., were our only VIEs. Except as described in Note 15, the adoption of FIN 46R on January 1, 2004 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Investments

In March 2004, the FASB issued EITF Issue No. 03-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments" (EITF 03-1) which provides new guidance for assessing impairment losses on debt and equity investments. Additionally, EITF 03-1 includes new disclosure requirements for investments that are deemed not to be temporarily impaired. In September 2004, the FASB delayed the accounting provisions of EITF 03-1; however, the disclosure requirements remain effective and were adopted for our year ended December 31, 2004. Although we have no material investments at the present time, we will evaluate the effect, if any, of EITF 03-1 when final guidance is released.

30

Exchanges of Productive Assets

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets," an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29. SFAS No. 153 addresses the measurement of exchanges of certain non-monetary assets (except for certain exchanges of products or property held for sale in the ordinary course of business). The Statement requires that non-monetary exchanges be accounted for at the fair value of the assets exchanged, with gains or losses being recognized, if the fair value is determinable within reasonable limits and the transaction has commercial substance. SFAS No. 153 is effective for nonmonetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expect the adoption of the new standard to have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations," an interpretation of FASB No. 143. FIN 47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in FASB No. 143 refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. FIN 47 also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value

of an asset retirement obligation. Although a liability exists for the removal of poles and asbestos, sufficient information is not available currently to estimate our liability, as the range of time over which we may settle theses obligations is unknown or cannot be reasonably estimated. The adoption of FIN 47 during the fourth quarter of 2005 had no impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections," a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. SFAS No. 154 changes the accounting for, and reporting of, a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior period's financial statements of voluntary changes in accounting principle, and changes required by new accounting standards when the standard does not include specific transition provisions, unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

Partnerships

In June 2005, the FASB issued EITF No. 04-5, "Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights," which provides new guidance on how general partners in a limited partnership should determine whether they control a limited partnership. EITF No. 04-5 is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of EITF No. 04-5 to have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

(b) Results of Operations

REVENUE

Frontier revenue is generated primarily through the provision of local, network access, long distance and data services. Such services are provided under either a monthly recurring fee or based on usage at agreed upon rates and are not dependent upon significant judgments by management, with the exception of a determination of a provision for uncollectible amounts.

CLEC revenue is generated through local, long distance, data and long-haul services. These services are primarily provided under a monthly recurring fee or based on usage at agreed upon rates and are not dependent upon significant judgments by management with the exception of the determination of a provision for uncollectible amounts and realizability of reciprocal compensation. CLEC usage based revenue includes amounts determined under reciprocal compensation agreements. While this revenue is governed by specific contracts with the counterparty, management defers recognition of disputed portions of such revenue until realizability is assured. Revenue earned from long-haul contracts is recognized over the term of the related agreement.

Consolidated revenue decreased \$5.9 million in 2005. The decrease in 2005 is primarily due to a \$9.7 million decrease resulting from the sale in 2004 of our electric utility property, partially offset by an increase of \$3.8 million in ILEC and ELI revenue.

Consolidated revenue decreased \$255.8 million, or 11% in 2004. The decrease in 2004 was primarily due to \$228.9 million of decreased gas and electric revenue primarily due to the disposition of our Arizona gas and electric operations, The Gas Company in Hawaii and our Vermont electric division and \$26.9 million of decreased telecommunications revenue.

Consolidated revenue decreased \$223.5 million, or 8% in 2003. The decrease in 2003 was primarily due to \$192.7 million of decreased gas and electric revenue primarily due to the disposition of our Arizona gas and electric operations and The Gas Company in Hawaii division and \$30.8 million of decreased telecommunications revenue.

On March 15, 2005, we completed the sale of our conferencing service business. As a result of the sale, we have classified the results of operations as discontinued operations in our consolidated statement of operations and restated prior periods.

On April 1, 2003, we sold approximately 11,000 telephone access lines in North Dakota. The revenues related to these access lines totaled \$1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Change in the number of our access lines is important to our revenue and profitability. We have lost access lines primarily because of competition, changing consumer behavior, economic conditions, changing technology, and by some customers disconnecting second lines when they add high-speed internet or cable modem service. We lost approximately 102,000 access lines during 2005 but added approximately 99,000 high-speed internet subscribers during this same period. The loss of lines during 2005 was primarily among residential customers. The non-residential line losses were principally in Rochester, New York, while the residential losses were throughout our markets. We expect to continue to lose access lines but to increase high-speed internet subscribers during 2006. A continued loss of access lines, combined with increased competition and the other factors discussed in MD&A, may cause our revenues, profitability and cash flows to decrease in 2006.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS REVENUE

(\$ in thousands)			20	2005						2004				2
		Amount	\$	Change		Change		Amount	\$	Change	00	Change		Am
Access services	\$	623,918	\$	(10,278)		-2%	\$	634,196	\$	(32,846)		-5%	\$	6
Local services		829,801		(21,376)		-3%		851 , 177		(7,825)		-1%		8
Long distance services		169,496		(14,127)		-8%		183,623		(15,759)		-8%		1
Data and internet services		175 , 026		36,795		27%		138,231		30,779		29%		1
Directory services		113 , 092		2,469		2%		110,623		3,689		3%		1
Other		91,985		7,178		8%		84,807		4,448		6%		
ILEC revenue		2,003,318		661		0%		2,002,657	_	(17,514)		-1%	2	2,0
ELI		159,161		3,131		2%		156,030		(9 , 359)		-6%		1
	\$2	2,162,479	\$	3,792		0%	\$2	2,158,687	\$	(26,873)		-1%	- \$2	2,1
	==		===				==		=		6		=	-==

Access Services

Access services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$10.3 million or 2%, as compared with the prior year. Switched access revenue decreased \$9.5 million, as compared with the prior year period, primarily due to a decline in minutes of use. Access service revenue includes subsidy payments we receive from federal and state agencies. Subsidy revenue decreased \$15.9 million primarily due to decreased Universal Service Fund (USF) support of \$19.2 million because of increases in the national average cost per loop (NACPL) and a decrease of \$2.0 million related to changes in measured factors, partially offset by an increase of \$6.4 million in USF surcharge rates. Special access revenue increased \$15.1 million primarily due to growth in high-capacity

circuits.

Access services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$32.8 million or 5%, as compared with the prior year. Switched access revenue decreased \$19.6 million primarily due to \$8.3 million attributable to a decline in minutes of use, the \$7.4 million effect of federally mandated access rate reductions and \$2.7 million associated with state intrastate access rate reductions. Subsidies revenue decreased \$12.8 million primarily due to an \$8.3 million decline in federal USF support because of increases in the NACPL, including a \$3.5 million accrual recorded during the third quarter of 2004 for mistakes made during 2002 and 2003 by the agency that calculates subsidy payments and true-ups related to 2002. The decreases were partially offset by an increase in USF surcharge revenue of \$2.1 million resulting from a rate increase.

32

Increases in the number of competitive communications companies (including wireless companies) receiving federal subsidies may lead to further increases in the NACPL, thereby resulting in further decreases in our subsidy revenue in the future. The FCC and state regulators are currently considering a number of proposals for changing the manner in which eligibility for federal subsidies is determined as well as the amounts of such subsidies. The FCC is also reviewing the mechanism by which subsidies are funded. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided nor the effect on our subsidy revenues. Future reductions in our subsidy and access revenues are not expected to be accompanied by proportional decreases in our costs, so any further reductions in those revenues will directly affect our profitability and cash flow.

Local Services

Local services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$21.4 million or 3% as compared with the prior year. This decline is comprised of \$18.8 million related to the continued loss of access lines and \$4.0 million related to a reserve associated with state rate of return limitations on earnings. Enhanced services revenue increased \$5.9 million, as compared with the prior year, primarily due to sales of additional product packages. Economic conditions or increasing competition could make it more difficult to sell our packages and bundles and cause us to lower our prices for those products and services, which would adversely affect our revenues and profitability and cash flow.

Local services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$7.8 million or 1% as compared with the prior year. Local revenue decreased \$17.9 million primarily due to \$4.7 million related to continued losses of access lines, \$2.2 million as a result of refunds to customers because of state earnings limitations, the termination of an operator services contract of \$3.4 million, \$3.5 million in decreased local measured service revenue and a decline of \$2.0 million in certain business services revenue. Enhanced services revenue increased \$10.1 million, primarily due to sales of additional product packages.

Long Distance Services

Long distance services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$14.1 million or 8%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to a decline in the average rates we bill for long distance services. Our long distance minutes of use increased slightly during 2005. Our long distance revenues may continue to decrease in the future due to lower rates and/or minutes of use. Competing services such as wireless, VOIP, and cable telephony are resulting in a loss of customers, minutes of use and further declines in the rates we charge our customers. We expect these factors will continue to adversely affect our long distance revenues during 2006.

Long distance services revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$15.8 million or 8%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to a decline in the average rate per minute. Our long distance minutes of use increased during 2004.

Data and Internet Services

Data and internet services revenue for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 increased \$36.8 million, or 27%, and \$30.8 million, or 29%, respectively, as compared with the prior year primarily due to growth in data and high-speed internet services.

Directory Services

Directory revenue for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 increased \$2.5 million, or 2%, and \$3.7 million, or 3%, respectively, as compared with the prior year due to growth in yellow pages advertising.

Other

Other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$7.2 million, or 8%, compared with the prior year primarily due to a \$4.8 million decrease in bad debt expense and sales of television service.

Other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased \$4.4 million or 6%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to a \$4.1 million carrier dispute settlement, a decline in bad debt expense of \$3.2 million and an increase in service activation revenue of \$2.5 million, partially offset by decreases of \$3.6 million in sales of customer premise equipment (CPE) and \$1.5 million in call center services revenue.

ELI

ELI revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$3.1 million, or 2%, primarily due to increased demand and growth in local and data services. For the year ended December 31, 2004, ELI revenue decreased \$9.4 million, or 6%, primarily due to lower demand and prices for long-haul services and lower reciprocal compensation revenues.

33

GAS AND ELECTRIC REVENUE

(\$ in thousands)		2005			2004				
	 Amo	ount	\$ (Change	% Change	Amount	\$ Change	% Change	
Gas revenue Electric revenue	\$ \$	_	\$ \$	_ (9 , 735)	0% -100%		\$ (137,686) \$ (91,193)		

Gas revenue We did not have any gas operations in the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Electric revenue

Electric revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$9.7 million as compared with the prior year due to the sale of our Vermont electric division on April 1, 2004. Electric revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$91.2 million, or 90%, as compared with the prior year. We have sold all of our electric operations and as a result will have no operating results in future periods for these businesses.

(\$ in thousands)		2005			2004	
	Amount	\$ Change	% Change	Amount	\$ Change	% Change
Network access Gas purchased Electric energy and fuel	\$ 195,491 -	\$ 2,076 -	1% 0%	\$ 193,415 -	\$ (26,006) (82,311)	-12% -100%
oil purchased	-	(5,523)	-100%	5,523	(58,308)	-91%
	\$ 195,491	\$(3,447)	-2%	\$ 198,938	\$(166,625)	-46%

Network access

Network access expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$2.1 million, or 1%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to increased costs in circuit expense due to more data traffic associated with increased high-speed internet customers and greater long distance minutes of use in the Frontier sector, and higher costs at ELI due to increased demand. As we continue to increase our sales of data products such as high-speed internet and expand the availability of our unlimited long distance calling plans, our network access expense is likely to increase.

Network access expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$26.0 million, or 12%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to decreased costs in long distance access expense related to rate changes partially offset by increased circuit expense associated with additional high-speed internet customers. ELI costs declined due to a drop in demand coupled with improved network cost efficiencies.

Gas purchased We did not have any gas operations in the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Electric energy and fuel oil purchased

Electric energy and fuel oil purchased for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$5.5 million as compared with the prior year due to the sale of our Vermont electric division on April 1, 2004. Electric energy and fuel oil purchased for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$58.3 million, or 91%, as compared with the prior year. We have sold all of our electric operations and as a result will have no operating results in future periods for these businesses.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

	2005			2004		
iount \$	Change	% Change	Amount	\$ Change %	b Change	Am
07,581 \$ 93,115	(15,436) (771)		\$ 623,017 93,886	\$ (61,952) (2,870)	 -9% -3%	\$6
17,484	2,448	2%	115,036	2,653	2%	1
18,180 \$	(13,759)	-2%	\$ 831,939	\$ (62,169)	-7%	\$8
_		17,484 2,448 18,180 \$ (13,759)				

34

Operating Expenses Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$15.4 million,

or 2%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to lower billing expenses as a result of the conversion of one of our billing systems in 2004 partially offset by rate increases for federal USF mandated contributions and annual fees to regulatory agencies. We routinely review our operations, personnel and facilities to achieve greater efficiencies. These reviews may result in reductions in personnel and an increase in severance costs. As a result of early retirement being offered to certain of our employees during the first quarter of 2006 we expect to recognize \$3.5 million to \$4.0 million of severance costs in the first quarter of 2006.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$62.0 million, or 9%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to decreased operating expenses in the public services sector due to the sales of our utilities and increased operating efficiencies and a reduction of personnel in our communications business.

Operating expenses in 2004 include \$4.2 million of expenses attributable to our efforts to comply with the internal control requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Included in operating expenses is stock compensation expense. Stock compensation expense was \$8.4 million and \$11.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2006, we expect to begin expensing the cost of the unvested portion of outstanding stock options pursuant to SFAS No. 123R. We expect to recognize approximately \$2.8 million of stock option expense related to the non-vested portion of previously granted stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Included in operating expenses is pension and other postretirement benefit expenses. In future periods, if the value of our pension assets decline and/or projected benefit costs increase, we may have increased pension expenses. Based on current assumptions and plan asset values, we estimate that our pension and other postretirement benefit expenses will decrease from \$19.0 million in 2005 to approximately \$15.0 million to \$18.0 million in 2006 and that no contribution will be required to be made by us to the pension plan in 2006. No contribution was made to our pension plan during 2005.

Taxes Other than Income Taxes

Taxes other than income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$2.9 million, or 3%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to decreased property taxes in the public services sector of \$11.6 million due to the sales of our utilities and lower gross receipts taxes of \$3.7 million in the Frontier sector that were partially offset by higher payroll, property and franchise taxes of \$13.0 million.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$2.4 million, or 2%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to increased marketing and advertising in an increasingly competitive environment and the launch of new products. As our markets become more competitive and we launch new products, we expect that our marketing costs will increase.

Sales and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased \$2.7 million, or 2%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to increased costs in the Frontier sector.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

(\$ in thousands)		2005			2004		2003
	Amount	\$ Change	% Change	Amount	\$ Change	% Change	Amount

_____ ____

Depreciation expense Amortization expense	126,378	(142)	0%	\$ 444,288 126,520	\$ (22,035) (318)	0%	
	\$ 541,959	\$ (28,849)	-5%	\$ 570,808	\$ (22,353)	-4%	\$ 593,161

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 decreased \$28.7 million, or 6%, and \$22.0 million, or 5%, respectively, as compared with the prior years due to a declining asset base. Effective with the completion of an independent study of the estimated useful lives of our plant assets we adopted new lives beginning October 1, 2005. Based on the study and our planned capital expenditures, we expect that our depreciation expense will decline in 2006 by approximately 12.5% compared to 2005. The decline is principally the result of extending the remaining useful lives of our copper facilities from approximately 16 years to a range of 26 to 30 years.

35

RESERVE FOR TELECOMMUNICATIONS BANKRUPTCIES / RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES / MANAGEMENT SUCCESSION AND STRATEGIC ALTERNATIVES EXPENSES

(\$ in thousands)				2005			2004				
	Amou	nt	\$ C	hange	% Change	Amo	unt	\$ (Change	% Change	
Reserve for (recovery of)											
telecommunications bankruptcies	\$	_	\$	_	0%	\$	_	\$	4,377	-100%	
Restructuring and other expenses Management succession and	\$	-	\$	_	0%	\$	_	\$	(9,687)	-100%	
strategic alternatives expenses	\$	-	\$	(90,632)	-100%	\$	90,632	\$	-	0%	

On July 11, 2004, our Board of Directors announced that it completed its review of our financial and strategic alternatives. In 2004, we expensed \$90.6 million of costs related to management succession and our exploration of financial and strategic alternatives. Included are \$36.6 million of non-cash expenses for the acceleration of stock benefits, cash expenses of \$19.2 million for advisory fees, \$19.3 million for severance and retention arrangements and \$15.5 million primarily for tax reimbursements.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, an agreement with WorldCom/MCI was approved by the bankruptcy court settling all pre-bankruptcy petition obligations and receivables. This settlement resulted in reduction to our reserve of approximately \$6.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2003. During the second quarter of 2003, we reserved approximately \$2.3 million of trade receivables with Touch America as a result of Touch America's filing for bankruptcy. These receivables were generated as a result of providing ordinary course telecommunication services. If other telecommunications companies file for bankruptcy, we may have additional significant reserves in future periods.

Restructuring and other expenses for 2003 primarily consisted of severance expenses related to reductions in personnel at our telecommunications operations and the write-off of software no longer used.

LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT

(\$ in thousands) 2003

----- -----

	Amount
Loss on impairment	\$ 15,300

During the third and fourth quarters of 2003, we recognized additional pre-tax impairment losses of \$4.0 million and \$11.3 million related to our Vermont property to write down assets to be sold to our best estimate of their net realizable value upon sale.

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME (LOSS), NET / INTEREST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)

(\$ in thousands)	200	5	2004	2003
	Amount \$ Change	% Change Amount	\$ Change % Change	Amount
Investment income Other income (loss),	\$ 18,236 \$ (15,38	C) −46% \$ 33,616	\$ 23,198 -223%	\$ 10,41
net	\$ (1,674) \$ 51,68	5 -97% \$ (53,359)	\$ (97,418) -221%	\$ 44,05
Interest expense Income tax expense	\$ 338,903 \$ (40,11 \$ 84,340 \$ 73,91	, , ,	\$ (37,499) -9% \$ (54,354) 84%	\$ 416,52 \$ 64,77

Investment Income

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$15.4 million, or 46%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to the sale in 2004 of our investments in D & E Communications, Inc. (D & E) and Hungarian Telephone and Cable Corp. (HTCC), partially offset by higher income in 2005 from short-term investments.

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased \$23.2 million as compared with the prior year primarily due to the sale of our investments in D & E and HTCC and higher income from short-term investments.

36

Other Income (Loss), net Other income, net for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$51.7 million, or 97%, as compared to prior year. The increase is primarily due to a pre-tax loss from the early extinguishment of debt of \$66.5 million in 2004 and a net loss on sales of assets of \$1.9 million, which is primarily attributable to the loss on the sale of our corporate aircraft, partially offset by \$25.3 million in income from the expiration of certain retained liabilities at less than face value, which are associated with customer advances for construction from our disposed water properties. In addition, during 2005 \$7.0 million was reserved in the fourth quarter in connection with a lawsuit, and during the second quarter we incurred a \$3.2 million loss on the exchange of debt, partially offset by gains on our forward rate agreements

Other loss, net for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased \$97.4 million as compared to prior year primarily due to a pre-tax loss from the early extinguishment of debt of \$66.5 million in 2004, and the recognition in 2003 of \$69.5 million in non-cash pre-tax gains related to a capital lease termination and a capital lease restructuring at ELI, partially offset in 2004 by \$25.3 million in income from the expiration of certain retained liabilities at less than face value, which are associated with customer advances for construction

from our disposed water properties and a net loss on sales of assets in 2004 of \$1.9 million, which is primarily attributable to the loss on the sale of our corporate aircraft, compared to a net loss on sales of assets in 2003 of \$20.5 million.

Interest Expense Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased \$40.1 million, or 11%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to the retirement and refinancing of debt. Our composite average borrowing rate for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared with the prior year was 2 basis points lower, decreasing from 7.96% to 7.94%.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$37.5 million, or 9%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to the retirement of debt. Our composite average borrowing rate for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared with the prior year was 11 basis points lower, decreasing from 8.07% to 7.96%.

Income Taxes

Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased \$73.9 million, as compared with the prior year primarily due to changes in taxable income and the effective tax rate. The effective tax rate for 2005 was 29.6% as compared with 13.5% for 2004. Our effective tax rate was below statutory rates in both years as a result of the completion of audits with federal and state taxing authorities and changes in the structure of certain of our subsidiaries.

Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased \$54.4 million, or 84%, as compared with the prior year primarily due to changes in taxable income (loss). The effective tax rate for 2004 was 13.5% as compared with an effective tax rate of 34.3% for 2003.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

(\$ in thousands)	2003
	Amount

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle \$ 65,769

During the first quarter of 2003, as a result of our adoption of SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," we recognized an after tax non-cash gain of approximately \$65.8 million.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(\$ in thousands)	2005	2004	2003
	Amount	Amount	Amount
Revenue	\$ 4 , 607	\$ 24 , 558	\$ 20,764
Operating income	\$ 1 , 489	\$ 8,188	\$ 6,820
Income taxes	\$ 449	\$ 2 , 957	\$ 2,440
Net income	\$ 1,040	\$ 5,231	\$ 4,380

On March 15, 2005, we completed the sale of CCUSA for \$43.6 million in cash. The pre-tax gain on the sale of CCUSA was \$14.1 million. Our after-tax gain was \$1.2 million. The book income taxes recorded upon sale are primarily attributable to a low tax basis in the assets sold.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Disclosure of primary market risks and how they are managed We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of our business operations due to ongoing investing and funding activities, including those associated with our pension assets. Market risk refers to the potential change in fair value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in interest rates and equity and commodity prices. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments, derivative commodity instruments or other financial instruments for trading purposes. As a result, we do not undertake any specific actions to cover our exposure to market risks and we are not party to any market risk management agreements other than in the normal course of business or to hedge long-term interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-bearing portion of our investment portfolio and interest on our long-term debt and capital lease obligations. The long-term debt and capital lease obligations include various instruments with various maturities and weighted average interest rates.

Our objectives in managing our interest rate risk are to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, a majority of our borrowings have fixed interest rates. Consequently, we have limited material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in interest rates on our long-term debt and capital lease obligations. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in interest rates would increase the amount that we pay on our variable obligations and could result in fluctuations in the fair value of our fixed rate obligations. Based upon our overall interest rate exposure at December 31, 2005, a near-term change in interest rates would not materially affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In order to manage our interest expense, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements. Under the terms of the agreements, which qualify for hedge accounting, we make semi-annual, floating rate interest payments based on six month LIBOR and receive a fixed rate on the notional amount. The underlying variable rate for these interest rate swaps is set in arrears. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the cash interest savings resulting from these interest rate swaps totaled approximately \$2.5 million and \$9.4 million, respectively.

During September 2005, we entered into a series of forward rate agreements that fixed the underlying variable rate component of some of our swaps at the market rate as of the date of execution for certain future rate-setting dates. At December 31, 2005, the rates obtained under these forward rate agreements were below market rates. A gain for the changes in the fair value of these forward rate agreements of \$1.9 million is included in other income (loss) net for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate exposure

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of our long-term debt and capital lease obligations was estimated to be approximately \$4.0 billion, based on our overall weighted average borrowing rate of 8.05% and our overall weighted maturity of 12 years. There has been no material change in the weighted average maturity since December 31, 2004.

The overall weighted average interest rate increased in 2005 by approximately 22 basis points. A hypothetical increase of 81 basis points in our weighted average interest rate (10% of our overall weighted average borrowing rate) would result in an approximate \$210.3 million decrease in the fair value of our fixed rate

obligations.

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in equity prices as of December 31, 2005 is limited to our investment in Adelphia, and our pension assets of \$762.2 million.

As of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, we owned 3,059,000 shares of Adelphia common stock. The stock price of Adelphia was \$0.04 and \$0.39 at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis of equity price exposure At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the equity portion of our investment portfolio was estimated to be \$0.1 million. A hypothetical 10% decrease in quoted market prices would result in an approximate \$12,000 decrease in the fair value of the equity portion of our investment portfolio.

38

Disclosure of limitations of sensitivity analysis

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of fair value of financial instruments. Actual values may differ from those presented should market conditions vary from assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value. This analysis incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2005. It does not consider those exposures or positions which could arise after that date. As a result, our ultimate exposure with respect to our market risks will depend on the exposures that arise during the period and the fluctuation of interest rates and quoted market prices.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements, See Index on page F-1.

2. Supplementary Data, Quarterly Financial Data is included in the Financial Statements (see 1. above).

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
-----Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(i) Disclosure Controls and Procedures We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, regarding the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this report, December 31, 2005, that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

(ii) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting(a) Management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting

Our management report on internal control over financial reporting appears on page F-2 and is incorporated by reference. (b) Attestation report of registered public accounting firm The attestation report of KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, on management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting appears on page F-3 and is incorporated by reference. (c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting We reviewed our internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 2005. There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the last fiscal quarter of 2005 that materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2005. See "Executive Officers of the Registrant" in Part I of this Report following Item 4 for information relating to executive officers.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2005.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2005.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2005.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2005.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report:

(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Independent Auditors' Report

Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 Consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to consolidated financial statements

(2) Index to Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto, or is not applicable or required.

(3) Index to Exhibits:

Exhibit

No. Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Citizens Communications Company, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.200.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2000, File No. 001-11001).

40

- 3.2 By-laws of Citizens Communications Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.200.5 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.1 Certificate of Trust of Citizens Communications Trust dated as of April 27, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant's Amendment No.1 to Form S-3 filed May 7, 2001 (Registration No. 333-58044)).
- 4.2 Trust Agreement of Citizens Capital Trust I, dated as of April 27,

2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the Registrant's Amendment No.1 to Form S-3 filed May 7, 2001 (Registration No. 333-58044)).

- 4.3 Form of Senior Note due 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.5 Form of Senior Note due 2008 and due 2031 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 22, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.6 Form of Senior Note due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 12, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.7 5% Convertible Subordinated Debenture due 2036 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.200.2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.8 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of January 15, 1996, of Citizens Utilities Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.4 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.9 Convertible Preferred Security Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A-1 to Exhibit 4.200.4 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.10 Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of January 15, 1996 of Citizens Utilities Capital L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.6 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.11 Partnership Preferred Security Certificate (incorporated by reference to Annex A to Exhibit 4.200.6 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.12 Convertible Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated as of January 15, 1996 between Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as guarantee trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.8 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.13 Partnership Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated as of January 15, 1996 between Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as guarantee trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.9 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.14 Letter of Representations dated January 18, 1996, from Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as trustee, to DTC, for deposit of Convertible Preferred Securities with DTC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.10 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.15 Indenture of Securities, dated as of August 15, 1991, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 1991, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.16 Indenture, dated as of January 15, 1996, between Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as indenture trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.1 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.16 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 15, 1996, between Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as indenture trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.200.2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed May 28, 1996, File No.

001-11001).

- 4.17 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated April 15, 1994, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.6 to the Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed July 5, 1994, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.18 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated October 1, 1994, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.7 to Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed January 3, 1995, File No. 001-11001).

41

- 4.19 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 15, 1995, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.8 to Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed March 29, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.20 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1995, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.9 to Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report filed March 29, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.21 Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1996 to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.11 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.22 Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1996 to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.100.12 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.23 Senior Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2001, between Citizens Communications Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank), as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.24 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2001, to Senior Indenture, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.25 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 19, 2001, to Senior Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 21, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.26 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 12, 2004, to Senior Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 12, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.27 Indenture, dated as of August 16, 2001, between Citizens Communications Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 22, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 4.28 Underwriting Agreement dated November 8, 2004, between Citizens Communications Company and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Representative of the several listed Underwriters, relating to the sale of \$700,000,000 principal amount of the 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 12, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.1 Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement for \$250,000,000 dated October 29, 2004 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).

- 10.2 Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan dated as of May 18, 2004, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.3 Amendment No. 1 to the Citizens Communications Company (f/k/a Citizens Utilities Company) Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on December 20, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.4 Separation Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Leonard Tow effective July 10, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.4 of the Registrants' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.5 Incentive Award Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Scott N. Schneider, effective March 11, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.6 Citizens Executive Deferred Savings Plan dated January 1, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.7 Citizens Incentive Plan restated as of March 21, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.8 1996 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 29, 1996, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.8.1 2000 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 20, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.9 Amendment to 1996 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the Registrant's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 31, 1997, File No. 001-11001).

42

- 10.10 Amendment to 1996 Equity Incentive Plan (effective March 4, 2005) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.11 Citizens 401(K) Savings Plan effective as of January 1, 1997, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.12 Loan Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Rural Telephone Finance Cooperative for \$200,000,000 dated October 24, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2001, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.13 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 31, 2003, to Loan Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Rural Telephone Finance Cooperative (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2003, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.14 Employment Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Mary Agnes Wilderotter, effective November 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.15 Employment Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and

Jerry Elliott, effective September 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).

- 10.16 Employment Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Robert Larson, effective September 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.17 Employment Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and John H. Casey, III, effective February 15, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.18 Offer of Employment Letter between Citizens Communications Company and Peter B. Hayes, effective February 1, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.19 Separation Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and L. Russell Mitten dated July 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.20 Amendment to the Separation Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and L. Russell Mitten dated August 31, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.21 Summary of Compensation Arrangements for Named Executive Officers Outside of Employment Agreements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 28, 2006, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.22 Summary of Non-Employee Directors' Compensation Arrangements Outside of Formal Plans, as amended, effective December 15, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2005, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.23 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement between Citizens Communications Company and Integra Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated February 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2006, File No. 001-11001).
- 10.24 Stock Redemption Agreement between Citizens Utilities Rural Company, Inc. and The Rural Telephone Bank effective November 10, 2005 (including schedule of substantially identical agreements with other Subsidiaries of the Registrant).
- 12.1 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges (this item is included herein for the sole purpose of incorporation by reference).
- 21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
- 23.1 Auditors' Consent
- 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- 32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibits 10.2, 10.3, 10.4, 10.5, 10.6, 10.7, 10.8, 10.8.1, 10.9, 10.10, 10.11, 10.14, 10.15, 10.16, 10.17, 10.18, 10.20, 10.21 and 10.22 are management

contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

44

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Item

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Notes to consolidated financial statements

F-1

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders Citizens Communications Company:

The management of Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f).

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control--Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005 and for the period then ended.

Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Stamford, Connecticut March 1, 2006

F-2

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders Citizens Communications Company:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Citizens Communications Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Common control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 1, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut March 1, 2006

F-3

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders Citizens Communications Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity, comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" as of January 1, 2003.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of Citizens Communications Company and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 1, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut March 1, 2006

F-4

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 (\$ in thousands)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents Accounts receivable, less allowances of \$32,408 and \$35,996, respectively Prepaid expenses Other current assets Assets of discontinued operations ____

\$

Total current assets Property, plant and equipment, net Goodwill, net Other intangibles, net Investments Other assets Total assets \$ ==== LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY _____ Current liabilities: \$ Long-term debt due within one year Accounts payable Advanced billings Income taxes accrued Other taxes accrued Interest accrued Other current liabilities Liabilities of discontinued operations ____ Total current liabilities Deferred income taxes Other liabilities Long-term debt Shareholders' equity: Common stock, \$0.25 par value (600,000,000 authorized shares; 328,168,000 and 339,633,000 outstanding and 343,956,000 and 339,635,000 issued at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively) Additional paid-in capital Accumulated deficit Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax Treasury stock ____ Total shareholders' equity Total liabilities and shareholders' equity \$ ____ The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. F-5CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (\$ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

2005	2004

\$ 2,162,479 \$ 2,168,422

Revenue

Operating expenses:				
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)		195 , 491		198 , 938
Other operating expenses		818,180		831,939
Depreciation and amortization		541,959		
Recovery of telecommunications bankruptcies		_		-
Restructuring and other expenses		_		-
Loss on impairment		_		_
Management succession and strategic alternatives expenses				00 633
(see Note 13)				90,632
Total operating expenses		1,555,630	1	L,692,317
Operating income		606,849		476 , 105
Investment income		18,236		33 , 616
Other income (loss), net		(1, 6/4)		(53,359
Interest expense		338,903		379,021
- Income from continuing operations before income taxes, dividends on convertible preferred securities and cumulative effect				
of change in accounting principle		284,508		77 , 341
		,		
Income tax expense		84,340		10,422
Income from continuing operations before dividends on convertible	•			
preferred securities and cumulative effect of change in				
accounting principle		200,168		66 , 919
Dividends on convertible preferred securities, net of income tax benefit of \$(3,853)*		_		_
- Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		200,168		66 , 919
Discontinued operations (see Note 8): Income from operations of discontinued conferencing business (including gain on disposal of \$14,061 in 2005) Income tax expense		15,550 13,343		8,188 2,957
- Income from discontinued operations		2,207		 5 , 231
-				
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		202,313		72 , 150
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax of \$0, \$0 and \$41,591, respectively		_		_
- Net income available for common shareholders	\$	202,375		72 , 150
= Basic income per common share:				
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of				I
change in accounting principle	\$	0.59	\$	0.22
Income from discontinued operations		0.01	-	0.02
Income from cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		-		_
- Net income per common share available for common shareholders	\$	0.60	\$	0.24
= Diluted income per common share:				
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of				
change in accounting principle	\$	0.59	\$	0.22
Income from discontinued operations	Ŷ	0.01	Ŷ	0.22
Income from cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		-		-
In accounting principle				

Net income per common share available for common shareholders \$ 0.60 \$ 0.23

* The consolidation of this item changed effective January 1, 2004 as a result of the application of a newly mandated accounting standard "FIN 46R." See Note 15 for a complete discussion.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-6

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (\$ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

	Common Stock		Additional Paid-In		Accumulate Other
	Shares		Capital	(Deficit)	-
Balance December 31, 2002 Stock plans			\$1,943,406 9,911	\$ (553,033)	\$(102,169)
Net income	1,004		<i>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </i>	187,852	_
Other comprehensive income, net of tax	ζ			10,,001	
and reclassifications adjustments	-	-	-	_	30,493
Balance December 31, 2003	295,434	73,858	1,953,317	(365,181)	(71,676)
Stock plans	4,821	1,206	14,236	-	-
	10,897	2,724	133,621	-	-
Conversion of Equity Units	28,483	7,121	396,221	-	-
Dividends on common stock of					
\$2.50 per share	-	-	(832,768)	-	-
Net income	-	-	-	72,150	-
Tax benefit on equity forward contract		-	-	5,312	-
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax and reclassifications adjustments	_	_	_	_	(27,893)
-					
Balance December 31, 2004	339 , 635	84,909	1,664,627	(287,719)	(99,569)
Stock plans			24,039	-	-
Conversion of EPPICS	2,225	556	24,308	-	-
Dividends on common stock of					
\$1.00 per share	-	-	(338,364)	-	-
Shares repurchased	-	-	-	-	-
Net income	-	-	-	202,375	-
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax and reclassifications adjustments	-	_	_	-	(23,673)
Balance December 31, 2005	343,956	\$ 85,989	\$1,374,610	\$ (85,344)	\$(123,242)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (\$ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

	2005	2004	2003
Net income	\$ 202,375	\$ 72,150	\$ 187,852
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax and reclassifications adjustments*	(23,673)	(27,893)	30,493
-			
Total comprehensive income	\$ 178,702 ==========	\$ 44,257 ========	\$ 218,345 ==========

* Consists of unrealized holding (losses)/gains of marketable securities, realized gains taken to income as a result of the sale of securities and minimum pension liability (see Note 21).

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-7

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (\$ in thousands)

	2005	2004
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:		
Net income	\$ 202,375	\$ 72,150
Deduct: Gain on sale of discontinued operations	(1,167)	-
Income from discontinued operations	(1,040)	(5,231)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for		
the adoption of SFAS No. 143	-	-
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by		
operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization expense	541,959	570,808
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer advance	(681)	(25,345)
Gain on capital lease termination/restructuring	-	-
Stock based compensation expense	8,427	47,581
Loss on debt exchange	3,175	-
Loss on extinguishment of debt	-	66,480
Investment gains	(492)	(12,066)
Gain on sales of assets	-	1,945
Loss on impairment	-	-
Other non-cash adjustments	20,481	30,397
Deferred taxes	100,636	24,016
Change in accounts receivable	4,583	11,895
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities	(33,399)	(67,499)
Change in other current assets	(640)	(3,694)

Net cash provided by operating activities	844,217	711,437
Cash flows provided from (used by) investing activities:		
Proceeds from sales of assets, net of selling expenses	24,195	30,959
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations	43,565	
Capital expenditures	•	(275,204)
Securities purchased	_	_
Securities sold	1,112	26,514
Other asset (purchased) distributions received		(28,110)
Net cash provided from (used by) investing activities	(193,863)	(245,841)
Cash flows provided from (used by) financing activities:		
Repayment of customer advances for construction		
and contributions in aid of construction	(1,662)	(2,089)
Long-term debt borrowings	-	700,000
Debt issuance costs	-	(15,502)
Long-term debt payments	(6,433)	(1,214,018)
Premium to retire debt	-	(66,480)
Issuance of common stock	47,550	544,562
Shares repurchased	(250,000)	-
Dividends paid	(338,364)	(832,768)
Net cash used by financing activities	(548,909)	(886,295)
Cash flows of discontinued operations		
Operating cash flows	578	1,361
Investing cash flows	(7)	(571)
Financing cash flows	_	(3)
	571	787
	• · -	
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	102,016	(419,912)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1,	163,759	583,671
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31,	\$ 265,775	\$ 163,759
Cash paid during the period for:		
Interest	\$ 318,638	\$ 370,128
Income taxes (refunds)	\$ 4,711	\$ (4,901)
Non-cash investing and financing activities:		
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps	\$ (13,193)	\$ (6,135)
Conversion of EPPICS	\$ 29,980	\$ 147,991
Debt-for-debt exchange	\$ 2,171	\$ -
Investment write-downs	\$ -	\$ 5,286

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-8

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Description of Business:

Citizens Communications Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as "we," "us," the "Company," or "our" in this report. We are a communications company providing services to rural areas and small and medium-sized towns and cities as an incumbent local exchange carrier, or ILEC. We offer our ILEC services under the "Frontier" name. In addition, we provide competitive local exchange carrier, or CLEC, services to business customers and to other communications carriers in certain metropolitan areas in the western United States through Electric Lightwave, LLC, or ELI, our wholly-owned subsidiary. In February 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell ELI and we expect the sale to close in the third quarter of 2006.

(b) Principles of Consolidation and Use of Estimates:

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Certain reclassifications of balances previously reported have been made to conform to the current presentation. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions which affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses we have reported and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates. We believe that our critical estimates are depreciation rates, pension assumptions, calculations of impairment amounts, reserves established for receivables, income taxes and contingencies.

(c) Cash Equivalents:

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(d) Revenue Recognition:

Frontier - Revenue is recognized when services are provided or when products are delivered to customers. Revenue that is billed in advance includes: monthly recurring network access services, special access services and monthly recurring local line charges. The unearned portion of this revenue is initially deferred as a component of other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet and recognized in revenue over the period that the services are provided. Revenue that is billed in arrears includes: non-recurring network access services, switched access services, non-recurring local services and long-distance services. The earned but unbilled portion of this revenue is recognized in revenue in our statement of operations and accrued in accounts receivable in the period that the services are provided. Excise taxes are recognized as a liability when billed. Installation fees and their related direct and incremental costs are initially deferred and recognized as revenue and expense over the average term of a customer relationship. We recognize as current period expense the portion of installation costs that exceeds installation fee revenue.

Electric Lightwave, LLC (ELI) - Revenue is recognized when the

services are provided. Revenue from long-term prepaid network services agreements including Indefeasible Rights to Use (IRU), are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related agreements. Installation fees and their related direct and incremental costs are initially deferred and recognized as revenue and expense over the average term of a customer relationship. We recognize as current period expense the portion of installation costs that exceeds installation fee revenue.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost or fair market value for our acquired properties, including capitalized interest. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The gross book value of routine property, plant and equipment retired is charged against accumulated depreciation.

F-9

(f) Goodwill and Other Intangibles:

Intangibles represent the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable tangible assets acquired. We undertake studies to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired and allocate purchase prices to assets and liabilities, including property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other identifiable intangibles. We annually (during the fourth quarter) examine the carrying value of our goodwill and trade name to determine whether there are any impairment losses and have determined for the year ended December 31, 2005 that there was no impairment (see Notes 2 and 7). All intangibles at December 31, 2005 are associated with the Frontier segment, which is the reporting unit.

SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with estimated useful lives be amortized over those lives and be reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" to determine whether any changes to these lives are required. We periodically reassess the useful life of our intangible assets with estimated useful lives to determine whether any changes to those lives are required.

(g) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed

Of:

We review long-lived assets to be held and used and long-lived assets to be disposed of, including intangible assets with estimated useful lives, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Recoverability of assets held for sale is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the assets to their estimated fair market value. If any assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value (see Note 5).

(h) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities:

We account for derivative instruments and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended. SFAS No. 133, as amended, requires that all derivative instruments, such as interest rate swaps, be recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent of holding them.

On the date we enter into a derivative contract that qualifies for hedge accounting, we designate the derivative as either a fair value or cash flow hedge. A hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment is a fair value hedge. A hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability is a cash flow hedge. We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair-value or cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions.

We also formally assess, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. If it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, we would discontinue hedge accounting prospectively.

All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized in income or stockholders' equity (as a component of other comprehensive income), depending on whether the derivative is being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flows.

We have interest rate swap arrangements related to a portion of our fixed rate debt. These hedge strategies satisfy the fair value hedging requirements of SFAS No. 133, as amended. As a result, the fair value of the swaps is carried on the balance sheet in other current assets and the related hedged liabilities are also adjusted to fair value by the same amount.

F-10

(i) Investments:

Marketable Securities We classify our cost method investments at purchase as available-for-sale. We do not maintain a trading portfolio or held-to-maturity securities.

Securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at estimated fair market value. These securities are held for an indefinite period of time, but might be sold in the future as changes in market conditions or economic factors occur. Net aggregate unrealized gains and losses related to such securities, net of taxes, are included as a separate component of shareholders' equity. Interest, dividends and gains and losses realized on sales of securities are reported in Investment income.

We evaluate our investments periodically to determine whether any decline in fair value, below the cost basis, is other than temporary. To determine whether an impairment is other than temporary, we consider whether we have the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price recovery and whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end, and forecasted performance of the investee. If we determine that a decline in fair value is other than temporary, the cost basis of the individual investment is written down to fair value, which becomes the new cost basis. The amount of the write-down is transferred from other comprehensive income (loss) and included in the statement of operations as a loss.

Investments in Other Entities

Investments in entities that we do not control, but where we have the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

(j) Income Taxes and Deferred Income Taxes:

We file a consolidated federal income tax return. We utilize the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred income taxes are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

(k) Stock Plans:

We have various stock-based compensation plans. Awards under these plans are granted to eligible officers, management, non-management employees and non-employee directors. Awards may be made in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or other stock based awards. As permitted by current accounting rules, we apply Accounting Principles Board Opinions (APB) No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for the employee stock plans resulting in the use of the intrinsic value to value the stock.

SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" and SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of SFAS No. 123," established accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As permitted by existing accounting standards, we have elected to continue to apply the intrinsic-valued-based method of accounting described above, and have adopted only the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, as amended.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment," ("SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS 123R requires that stock-based employee compensation be recorded as a charge to earnings. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission required the adoption of SFAS No. 123R for annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, we will adopt SFAS 123R commencing January 1, 2006 and expect to recognize approximately \$2,800,000 of expense related to the non-vested portion of previously granted stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006.

We provide pro forma net income and pro forma net income per common

share disclosures for employee and non-employee director stock option grants based on the fair value of the options at the date of grant (see Note 18). For purposes of presenting pro forma information, the fair value of options granted is computed using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.

F-11

Had we determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for the Management Equity Incentive Plan (MEIP), Equity Incentive Plan (EIP) and Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan, our pro forma net income and net income per common share available for common shareholders would have been as follows:

		2005	2
(\$ in thousands)			
Net income available for common			
shareholders Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income,	As reported	\$202 , 375	\$72
net of related tax effects		5,267	29
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of			
related tax effects		(8,165)	(38
	Pro forma	\$199,477	 \$63 =====
Net income per common share available for common shareholders	As reported: Basic Diluted	\$ 0.60 0.60	\$
	Pro forma: Basic Diluted	\$ 0.59 0.59	\$

In connection with the payment of the special, non-recurring dividend of \$2.00 per common share on September 2, 2004, the exercise price and number of all outstanding options was adjusted such that each option had the same value to the holder after the dividend as it had before the dividend. In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44), "Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation" and EITF 00-23, "Issues Related to the Accounting for Stock Compensation under APB No. 25 and FIN 44," there is no accounting consequence for changes made to the exercise price and the number of shares of a fixed stock option or award as a direct result of the special, non-recurring dividend.

(1) Net Income Per Common Share Available for Common Shareholders: _____ Basic net income per common share is computed using the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding during the period being reported on. Except when the effect would be antidilutive, diluted net income per common share reflects the dilutive effect of the assumed exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method at the beginning of the period being reported on as well as common shares that would result from the conversion of convertible debt. In addition, the related interest on debt (net of tax) is added back to income since it would not be paid if the debt was converted to common stock.

(2) Recent Accounting Literature and Changes in Accounting Principles:

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." We adopted SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003. As a result of our adoption of SFAS No. 143, we recognized an after tax non-cash gain of approximately \$65,769,000. This gain resulted from the elimination of the cumulative cost of removal included in accumulated depreciation and is reflected as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in our statement of operations in 2003, as we have no legal obligation to remove certain of our long-lived assets.

F-12

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation and amends the disclosure req